
 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 1
 GOVERNMENT 

 OF 

 THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

 

 + + + + + 

 

 ZONING COMMISSION 

 

 + + + + + 

 

 PUBLIC HEARING 

 

═══════════════════════════════════╗ 
IN THE MATTER OF:                  ║ 
                                   ║ 
 The Application of Summit   ║ 
Properties for a text amendment    ║  Case No. 
to Chapter 7 of the Zoning         ║  99-8 
Regulations, relating to expansion ║ 
of the use of transfers of         ║ 
development rights (TDR).          ║ 
═══════════════════════════════════╝ 
 

   Thursday 

   April 27, 2000 

 

   Hearing Room 220 South 

   441 4th Street, N.W. 

   Washington, D.C. 

 

 

  The Public Hearing of Case No. 99-8 by the District 

of Columbia Zoning Commission convened at 6:00 p.m. in the Office 

of Zoning Hearing Room at 441 4th Street, Northwest, Washington, 

D.C., Anthony J. Hood, Chairperson, presiding. 

ZONING COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT: 

 

 ANTHONY J. HOOD         Chairperson 

 CAROL J. MITTEN         Vice Chairperson 

 HERBERT M. FRANKLIN     Commissioner 

 KWASI HOLMAN            Commissioner 

 JOHN G. PARSONS         Commissioner 

 

OFFICE OF ZONING STAFF PRESENT: 

 

 Alberto Bastida  Secretary 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 2
 

 

OTHER AGENCY STAFF PRESENT: 

 

 Andrew Altman  Director, Office of Planning 

 John Fondersmith  Office of Planning 

 Mary McCarthy  Office of Planning 

 Arthur Rodgers  Office of Planning 

 

 

APPEARANCES: 

 

 On Behalf of the Applicant, Summit Properties: 

 

  JOHN T. EPTING, ESQ. 

 of: Wilkes, Artis, Hedrick & Lane, Chartered  

  1666 K Street, N.W. 

  Suite 1100 

  Washington, D.C. 20006-2897  

  (202) 457-7800 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 3
 INDEX

 

Preliminary Matters............................................4 

 

Presentation by Mr. John Epting, Esquire 

 Office of Wilkes Artis .................................6 

 

Persons in Support of the Case #99-8: 

 

 Margaret Smith-Ford ...................................15 

 Anne Adams ............................................20 

 Stephen S. Fuller .....................................29 

 Steven E. Sher ........................................34 

 Charles Docter .......................................114 

 Dale McDaniel ........................................116 

 Henry Bauden .........................................120 

 

Presentation by Mr. Andrew Altman, Director 

 Office of Planning ....................................47 

 

 Art Rogers ............................................48 

 Ellen McCarthy ........................................57 

 

Commission Questions..........................................63 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 4

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S 

 (6:06 p.m.) 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Good evening, ladies and 

gentlemen.  I am Anthony Hood, chairman of the Zoning Commission 

for the District of Columbia.  Joining me this evening are 

Commissioners Franklin, Parson and Mitten and Commissioner Holman 

will be joining us later.   

  I declare this adjourned public hearing reopened.   

  The case scheduled for this evening involves 

proposed text amendments to Chapter 7 of the zoning regulations.  

The application has been submitted by Summit Properties and 

relates to the expansion of the use of transfers of development 

rights.  The Commission opened the public hearing in this case on 

April 13, 2000, at which time it heard preliminary matters.   

  This evening the order of procedure will be as 

follows:  preliminary matters, applicant's presentation, report of 

the Office of Planning, report of other agencies, report of 

advisory neighborhood commission, persons in support, persons in 

opposition.  The Commission will adhere to this schedule as 

strictly as possible.   

  Those presenting testimony should be brief and non-

repetitive.  If you have a prepared statement, you should give 

copies to staff and orally summarized the highlights.  Please give 

us your statement before summarizing.  Each individual appearing 

before the Commission must complete two identification slips and 
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submit them to the reporter at the time you make your statement.  

If they guidelines are followed, an adequate record can be 

developed in a reasonable length of time.  

  Mr. Bastida, do we have any preliminary matters, 

any additional? 

  MR. BASTIDA:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, the Office of 

Zoning received today a letter from Downtown Housing Now Committee 

in which they recommend a favorable -- the approval of this 

application and I have provided you with a copy of that letter, 

signed by Mr. Docter and that's the only preliminary matter the 

office has. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  For clarification, is this the 

same -- similar to the same letter we received earlier?  There was 

a letter earlier, I believe. 

  MR. BASTIDA:  It's not the same letter. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  Okay.  So be it.  Any 

other preliminary matters? 

  MR. BASTIDA:  No, Mr. Chairman, the Office of 

Zoning has not any other preliminary matters. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  Thank you.  Next we will 

have the applicant's presentation.  Before we get started, fellow 

commissioners, what I would like to do, if we are all in 

agreement, is to have the applicant's presentation and then the 

report of the Office of Planning and afterwhich we can kind of 

open it up and kind of like have a free discussion, if that's in 
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order.  

  VICE CHAIR MITTEN:  That's fine. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Any objections? 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  Sounds good. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  Applicant's presentation, 

before you begin again, let me just ask about how much time do you 

think you need? 

  MR. EPTING:  We're looking from anywhere from 15 to 

30 minutes and we're actually flexible.  I'm going to present my 

first witness and she will be here, Margaret Smith-Ford.  And, at 

that point I was actually going to say to you that we have three 

other expert witnesses we're ready to present, but it will be up 

to you whether you thought you needed to hear them tonight. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  I believe we do, but we were 

just trying to get a feel for about how much time you would need 

and we're not rushing you, so, you can see.   

  MR. EPTING:  Good evening.  John Epting with Wilkes 

Artis.  Dennis Hughes from Wilkes Artis is also with me today.  

  First I'm glad to be here for this hearing tonight. 

 Third time's a charm, maybe.  This proposed text amendment was 

stimulated by Summit's efforts to redevelopment the landmark E UMW 

building, the whole building, historic preservation, with 

residential and retail.   

  We felt that these efforts needed some additional 

incentives from the downtown and that we were doing exactly what 
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efforts such as Summit's to energize the broader downtown area 
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right into what the Post was talking about earlier in the month 

with the living downtown.  We think efforts like this and similar 

efforts will continue to stimulate living downtown. 
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  Thus while not in the downtown development 

boundaries, the project encompasses what we think the city has 

been clamoring for, however, for this project and other similar 

projects to go forward, we believe that we need additional 

incentives, such as TDRs for these types of projects.   

  Since the April 13th hearing session, we further 

reviewed and responded, I think, in detail to the Office of 

Planning report.  We believe that through our written 

correspondence and what you'll hear tonight, we've addressed all 

the issues in that report.  I would like to summarize briefly our 

responses.  And, I believe the Office of Planning's April 21st 

report actually goes a long way to reaching some middle ground in 

terms of answering those questions.  But, the first response that 

we have is that we do not believe there is an over supply of TDRs. 

  We pointed out that the majority of TDRs available 

for sell right now were generated within the last 15 months.  We 

think that's a short time frame for selling the TDRs.  Even OP in 
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its supplemental report agrees that TDRs and their values do not, 

in and of themselves, produce preferred uses.  The preferred uses 

have to make bottom line economic sense to begin with.   

  For instance this project, it makes marginal 

economic sense to begin with.  It's sort of on the yes line of 

going ahead.  But, when you're looking at projects generally, 

particularly from bigger developers, additional incentives such as 

these TDRs which come at the back in and they may not come for 

years, kind of help push those decision makers into the positive 

side.  And, that's what we're talking about.  So, for projects 

like this sort of pushing them a little bit far to forward. 

  We believe that OP has focused only on the short 

term TDR glut and has ignored the three new receiving zones which 

were established in 1998, just two years ago.  There was a 

discussion at the April 13th session about the scope of the text 

amendment.  We believe that it is already limited in scope to just 

the C-4 areas west of DD.  It is narrowly focused. 

  Anne Adams will discuss the types of buildings 

we're talking about and I would like to go ahead and give to you 

now, we've reviewed our Exhibit A to our submission before.  What 

we've done on the landmark buildings and the contributing 

buildings, we've sort of written in what their current status is, 

which ones have been recently renovated; which ones are used as 

museums or private clubs.  And, it gives you a much better idea of 

how few buildings we're talking about, because the ones that are 
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being renovated now or have recently been renovated, we don't 

believe would really, in any time frame, come under this text 

amendment.  

  And, Anne will be able to talk about that and we 

have slides of these buildings, too, if you want to see them.  In 

terms of the residential use question, which was raised at the 

April 13th session, this will be a traditional apartment house.  

We'll have an apartment house -- Summit and we expect the other 

developers like this or apartment house residential builders.  

Margaret Smith-Ford will be available and will discuss tonight the 

types of residences they're talking about, but we expect it to be 

the same as other residences and downtown buildings, both in the 

east end and in the near downtown. 

  Other zoning incentives we talked about at the 

April 13th hearing and the OP report, we don't believe there are 

other suitable incentives out there.  I think the OP supplement 

report agrees with us now at least in the short term time frame.  

We also believe that, such as tax abatements are actually 

supplemental to TDRs and not exclusive to TDRs.  If you really 

want to help residential, particularly with historic preservation, 

we've been pushing for both types of incentives.   

  There was a discussion at the April 13th hearing 

about the down sides of this proposal.  It was kind of like, I 

think Mr. Franklin said, what's the problem if you have glut of 

TDRs?  We believe that in the worse case if this text amendment 
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goes through, the District may obtain several quality residential 

buildings in the downtown C-4 building, with historic preservation 

components.  That development may well lead to improving the 

market for associated residential and other retail all across 

downtown, including the DD. 

  If no development occurs in receiving zones for a 

short period of time, there may be a glut in the market for TDRs. 

 We don't believe this is a long term effect and the market will 

take care of it and Steve Sher is going to talk about the 

potential demand in the receiving zones, which, again, have only 

been in place for two years. 

  And, finally, as with any Commission action, and 

the Commission has been tinkering with DD basically ever since it 

enacted it.  The Commission can review the issue and change its 

mind later.  We briefly discussed the idea of OP of having some 

sort of review provision on this text amendment.  I don't know 

where we come out on that, but that's something that we can 

discuss.  We believe this proposal is not ad hoc because it's 

consistent with the comprehensive plan.  Steve Sher is going to 

talk about that.  

  And, finally, you know, my sense when I read the OP 

report is that they tend to minimize this type of residential 

because it's outside of DD.  But, when we look at DD, I mean, I 

look at it and I think brokers look at it and developers look at 

it.  We look at downtown generally as sort of a fluid area and 
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while DD has hard boundaries, we don't really think that downtown 

residential should.  We believe that residential west of DD is 

going to have just as much impact on the overall downtown as 

residential in DD.  And, we even think that for people who work 

let's say on the Connecticut Avenue corridor, that they actually 

may want housing choices not in the east end, maybe in a further 

west end, along 15th or 16th Street. 

  So, that's where we're coming from.  We don't see 

any negative impact on the receiving zones as mentioned in the OP 

report.  And, finally, and I just get to vesting real quick and 

then I'm done.  We proposed two revisions to our text amendment.  

The first had to do with dropping Section 7555.7 at the request 

for Charlie Docter.   

  As originally written, that section would not allow 

TDRs for property where housing was required.  Charlie wanted us 

to drop that so that we permit housing through whatever incentives 

were available and not to limit those incentives.  We went along 

with that and the OP report did not address that provision.   

  The second revision is that we suggested a change 

in the timing of TDR vesting.  The DD regulations for preferred 

uses permit TDRs to vest for projects greater than 15,000 square 

feet upon a building permit and a lease with an occupant.  We 

never felt that a lease was appropriate to residential types of 

developments like this, particularly one with a historic 

preservation component.  So, therefore, we first came up with a 
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proposal that would vest the TDRs with a building permit and 

confirmation from the historic preservation division that we were 

done.  However, because of time constraints that we've learned 

from this project already; time constraints in moving this thing 

along and a number of things, we proposed and then provided to OP 

a proposal vesting 50 percent of building permits stage and the 

remainder at completion and I have a copy of that change, which we 

consider that as Exhibit A, tonight.  

  But, that provision raised concerns from the 

housing advocates that we were actually vesting too soon.  The 

building permit, even though while a developer may have spent over 

a year and millions of dollars to get to that stage, maybe it was 

too early and that somebody eventually wouldn't build the work.  

So, we came up with a change to vest 50 percent at 50 percent 

completion of the project and 50 percent at the rear end.  And, 

that's Exhibit B, which we're going to hand in.  And, that's where 

we are tonight. 

  We have talked with OP about the recommendation to 

adopt the 25 percent vesting rule which they mentioned in the OP 

report.  I don't really have any trouble with that in terms of -- 

it actually might even help us, because we would get some TDRs 

early, but it's not a preferred use.  It's under the historic 

preservation section of DD.  And, we feel these TDRs are being 

generated because of the preferred use which is residential.  But, 

again, that's something we're willing to talk about.  But, I think 
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Exhibit B, which we're handing out now, would be really urged 

towards divesting. 

  The project does have the support of the DCPL, the 

Downtown Cluster of Congregations, the Downtown Housing Now 

Committee and there is a letter supportive of the preservation 

goals from the Historic Preservation Division of D.C.   

  And, her timing is really pretty nice.  Unless 

there are questions, I would like to turn to my first witness, 

Margaret Smith-Ford. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Colleagues, unless we have any 

pressing questions, if we can hold off and hear Mrs. Ford's 

testimony. 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  I apologize for being late.  Good 

evening.  My name is Margaret Smith-Ford and I'm a developer with 

Summit Properties.   

  Summit Properties is a department development 

company here in the Washington, D.C. area.  We're based in 

Charlotte, North Carolina and we own and manage over 18,000 

apartment homes.  We are a real estate investment trust, publicly 

traded on the New York Stock Exchange. 

  We at Summit Properties are extremely enthusiastic 

about the renaissance the District is experiencing.  We are 

particularly pleased with the effort underway to make downtown 

more residential.  Over a year ago Summit Properties began work on 

our first project in the District of Columbia, the United Mine 
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Workers Building with plans to develop it as 106 high-end 

apartments and 15,000 square feet of retail.  Over this past year 

we have encountered tremendous support, both from the community 

and from district officials for our project and for the concept of 

a more liveable downtown.   

  Many people would tell you that housing does not 

work in downtown D.C.  When we first considered this project we 

were warned of the many obstacles we would face.  We were aware, 

however, of a new will and commitment on behalf of the District to 

make housing happen in the downtown.  Based on this renewed 

commitment to housing, Summit made our decision to proceed with 

the United Mine Workers Development.  We intend to continue 

investing in the District and have already lined up two additional 

projects in the downtown area.   

  Over this past year, in addition to experiencing 

great support, we have encountered numerous hurdles.  Among these 

are the high cost of land in the C-4 District, the restrictions of 

developing a historic building, and the difficulty of providing 

parking on such a small site.  While many of these costs are 

predictable, there are many elements of preserving a historic 

building that cannot be anticipated.  It is these extraordinary 

costs, such as the $50.00 to $75.00 a square foot premium for 

renovation and the 15,000 square feet of lost FAR due to 

preservation restrictions that work against bringing housing 

downtown.   
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  Summit has worked diligently to meet all of these 

challenges.  Unfortunately, the numbers are still significantly 

stacked against a residential development at this location.  Are 

costs are roughly 25 to 30 percent greater than a non-C-4, non-

historic project in the district.  A major component of this cost 

differential is the fact that a residential developer must pay 

office prices for land in the C-4 Zoning District.  This TDR 

zoning amendment will not only help our project and its viability, 

but will be a major incentive to other similar projects that will 

face the same obstacles.  This amendment is supported by both 

housing and preservation groups.  The Downtown Housing Now 

Committee, the Downtown Cluster of Congregations, and the D.C. 

Preservation League all support this effort.   

  The text amendment proposes that 50 percent of the 

TDRs vest at 50 percent completion and the balance at the end of 

the project.  The intention of this is to partially offset the 

extraordinary costs of development in construction during the 

construction phase.  The office of planning has proposed a 25 

percent vesting occur at the time development plans have been 

approved and the balance at the end of construction.   

  We discussed this with the Office of Planning and 

we would be willing to accept this structure if the Commission 

finds it preferable.  

  We have also discussed with OP their reservations 

regarding the TDR market.  While we respect their concerns, our 
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analysis has lead us to the conclusion that there is and will be a 

demand for TDRs over time.  We are aware that the price will 

fluctuate and we are comfortable with this.  We recognize that as 

an incentive TDRs are not necessarily an up front benefit, but 

will likely be one that is received later on in the project.  

However, given the concerns that have been expressed and the 

different views on the matter, one option we developed with OP is 

that of a reevaluation of the TD program in general and this text 

amendment in three to four years from now.   

  If the Zoning Commission felt this would be 

appropriate, such a review could possibly serve to evaluate 

whether TDRs are an effective incentive.  We know that residential 

development makes economic sense for the District by generating 

additional tax revenue and personal spending as Dr. Fuller will 

demonstrate.  Residential development also makes sense for this 

property because it is historic.  Development of office in this 

location would likely result in a facade retention, that is not 

preserving the entire building as we are doing, because the 

existing building could not easily be converted to a modern office 

building.   

  The unique historic space of the Mine Workers 

Building will, however, made grand apartments and allow us to 

preserve the entire historic building.  We believe that bringing 

housing to this location at McPherson Square will encourage other 

residential developers by making this part of downtown more 
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residential.  Our project will be a traditional rental apartment 

community with full-time residents.  The apartments will be full 

sized and will include efficiencies, one bedrooms and two 

bedrooms.  Seventy percent of our apartments will be 900 square 

feet or larger and will range in size up to 2,200 square feet. 

  This development, which we will call Summit Grand 

Park, will bring 125 to 150 people to this location, residents who 

will make the downtown more alive after business hours, spend 

money in local restaurants and support new retailers a few blocks 

away, such as Borders and Barnes and Noble. 

  Summit Properties is doing everything we can to 

make this project economically viable, working with HPRB, 

identifying innovative parking systems and working with our 

general contractor to realize cost savings.  In our application to 

the Zoning Commission we are seeking your help to assist us in 

insuring the success of this very exciting effort and to further 

the District's goal of a more residential downtown.   

  Thank you. 

  MR. EPTING:  Our next witness would be Anne Adams 

who will talk about, briefly, the inventory of buildings that we 

handed out and also if it is your pleasure we can show you some 

slides of the types of buildings that we're talking about.  Okay. 

  MS. ADAMS:  Good evening.  My name is Anne Adams.  

I'm an architectural historian with Wilkes Artis.  In some ways it 

may be just as well that we didn't go forward on the 13th, because 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 18

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

I was pretty worked up about something that appeared to me to be 

basically a sort of -- ignoring of half the benefits of this 

proposed amendment, which is namely the preservation benefits, 

which this is not just about housing.  This is also about 

achieving better preservation than we're likely to have otherwise 

under the preservation law.  But, I've sort of calmed down, so.  

  I've been working in the field of preservation for 

more than 20 years.  I've seen it from all sides, private 

preservation organizations, the District's Historic Preservation 

Division and now sort of from the private sector at Wilkes Artis, 

which is basically where people are most effected by preservation 

legislation.  And, while I think preservation is a really good 

thing and the city has identified it as a public goal and policy, 

everybody doesn't always agree with that, because preservation 

projects take longer to get reviewed.  They are frequently more 

complicated.  They are unpredictable and they are usually more 

expensive.   

  So, from my point of view any incentive to help 

people do better preservation is a good thing and in this instance 

we have an amendment, text amendment that will do both 

encouragement of housing and preservation.  This incentive 

addresses two identified public policies, both preservation and 

housing downtown and for anybody who is not connected with 

planning or zoning, probably most people outside of this room, 

they have no idea what DD is or where it is.  Downtown is south of 
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Dupont Circle, from Georgetown to the Capital.  It's defined by 

uses and building types and activity and residential within those 

parameters is something that helps make a lively living downtown 

as we've so often heard. 

  The city has a mechanism to identify and protect 

its historic buildings through the historic preservation act, 

wherein there is a listing process for historic districts and 

historic landmarks and permits are reviewed for compatibility with 

the characteristics of those buildings and districts, but there 

isn't much in the way of local incentives.  There are lots of 

sticks, but not a lot of carrots right now.  And, this amendment 

focuses, in my mind, incentives where they are most needed, which 

is in the C-4 zone outside of DD.   

  It's in the C-4 zone where the pressures on these 

landmark buildings is the greatest, because development is allowed 

beyond what is usually on the site already, so how does one 

justify the difference between the value of the land and what you 

can get on the property, given the preservation restrictions and 

process.  So, this has been targeted to a finite group of 

buildings, which is those in the C-4 zone and I'll go down through 

the list in a second.  Where the pressure is on these building is 

the greatest and I think that's an important thing.  It's a good 

place to start and it's where incentives are probably needed the 

most.   

  You've heard about the project at the United Mine 
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Workers Building, which is what has generated this, but there are 

potentially other buildings that could benefit from this.  I'll go 

through the list right now.  There are not a lot of buildings, but 

there are some and anything that can take advantage of this I 

think will produce benefits for the city.  There are actually a 

total of 29 buildings that are either landmarks or contributing 

buildings in historic districts that could benefit from this.   

  Many of them, and I actually -- 11 which are in 

club use, institutional or church uses or have been recently 

renovated and/or incorporated into other -- into office projects, 

are unlikely candidates, as you heard earlier.  So, the real 

number of likely candidates comes down to about 10.  Some of those 

because of their configuration are probably not likely candidates. 

  Anyway, I'll go down the list that you have there 

and remind you of sort of their status.  This is the Southern 

Building at 1425 H Street, which has been renovated for office use 

and has an addition of two floors as part of that renovation.  

This is the National Chamber of Commerce Headquarters, a long term 

institutional use, unlikely to go into other use any time soon.  

The Metropolitan Club with its office addition, also long term 

private club use. 

  This is the Bachelor Apartment House at 1737 H 

Street, N.W., which actually is a potential candidate.  It was 

actually residential to start with.  It has renovated for office 

use in the '70s.  It is sort of due for renovation again and 
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people are looking at possible uses for this site.  This is the 

Army-Navy Club, the facade of which was incorporated into new 

construction for office and club use.  Another unlikely candidate. 

 The Alibi Club at 1806 Eye Street, long time private club.   

  This, of course, is the Almas Temple at 1315 K 

Street, the facade of which was dismantled and moved 300 feet west 

to be incorporated into that office building and have new 

construction built behind it for club use.  The recently renovated 

Tower Building at 1401 K Street.  This is the Champlain Apartment 

House at 1424 K Street, which is also possibly another likely 

candidate, because of its original use, it's original 

configuration and it's due for renovation to upgrade it. 

  The Metropolitan AME Church, 1518 M Street, which 

is occupied by a very active congregation, an unlikely candidate. 

 Demonet Building at the corner of Connecticut and M, which was 

renovated some years ago for retail use.  This is where Burburies 

is and actually integrated into the office building behind it.  

Franklin School, 13th and K, a possible candidate.  There are a 

number of school buildings that have been converted to residential 

use.  It's vacant at the moment.  Again, I am not an expert in 

housing or real estate, but having seen lots of things in the 

course of the last 20 years and how people reuse buildings, this 

is sort of my guesstimate of what might work and also knowing that 

things have been renovated seemed to me it is unlikely that they 

will come into housing use any time soon. 
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  This is the Masonic Temple at 801 13th Street.  

It's the National Museum of Women and the Arts, a wonderful 

adaptive reuse for that building.  The National Savings and Trust. 

 Actually, I don't now what it's called now, but that's the bank 

it was original was built for.  A number of these buildings were 

purpose built bank buildings, which in some ways limit their uses 

and most of them are still in active use as banks, but they have 

large banking halls and facilities that limit their options for 

use.   

  These are landmarks and buildings in the 15th 

historic district.  From right to left you have the Hibbs-Folger 

Building, the Swartzell, Rheem, and Hensey Building, the facade of 

which is -- the lower piece of which was incorporated into new 

construction above for office use and then the Securities 

Building, Union Trust Bank Building.  You have the Summit 

Properties, United Mine Workers University Club Building 

immediately across McPherson Square, from the 15th Street historic 

district.  The Greyhound Bus Terminal, another unlikely candidate. 

 The entire building has been incorporated into a very large 

office building.   

  Two landmark buildings at the corner of 15th and 

Pennsylvania, American Security Trust and the Riggs National Bank. 

 Again, these are -- the form and use of these buildings -- the 

form of the buildings was dictated by their use and limits their 

other uses.  On the west side of 15th Street, the American 
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Security Building, on the left the Walker Building and then the 

side of the Union Trust, the Shoreham Building, which is currently 

under renovation as a hotel, the Bowen Building which seems a 

possible likely candidate because the NRC have been seeking for 

some time options for its reuse and its configuration is such that 

it might lend itself to residential, Liberty National Bank, the 

Woodward Building at 1426 H Street.  Another building with a 

configuration that might lend itself to residential use.   

  Lafayette Building, which is federally owned and 

occupied right now, which is unlikely to be a candidate, I think, 

at this point.  And, I have to show you this again, because this 

is such a wonderful setting for an apartment building.  This is 

the Mine Workers Building again with the part across the street.  

It happened to look very nice that day. 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  The Park Service tulips. 

  MS. ADAMS:  Yes, the Park Service tulips, exactly. 

 So, that's my way of telling you there is a limited range of 

possibilities here, but we think these buildings are important and 

to the extent that one can provide incentives to do better 

preservation that would likely be allowed under the local law, 

which means full building retention, as opposed to facade projects 

and the integration of the facade into new construction, which 

would likely be for office use and house, is a good thing.   

  And, even if all of these building were done, what 

would be so bad about that?  We would have great preservation and 
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we would have housing downtown.  I don't think that's likely, but 

to my way of thinking, because of the preservation benefits, it 

wouldn't be the worst thing in the world.  One of the things that 

I think is really important about the Summit project is because 

they're retaining the entire building and they are using the grand 

public spaces on the lower level of the building for retail and 

restaurant use and so forth, those spaces, which have not been 

previously available to the public will become available to the 

public or accessible to the public.  And, I think that's a 

significant preservation benefit and it sort of enhances and 

advances the cause of preservation and people's understanding of a 

significant building in the city's history and we don't often have 

that kind of component resulting from many of our projects 

downtown. 

  So, I would urge you to adopt this, because I think 

it effectively targets benefits where they are needed most, where 

the zoning is intense and the pressures are the highest and it's 

not just about housing, but it's also about good preservation, 

better preservation than would otherwise be required.  Thank you. 

  MR. EPTING:  And, our next witness is Dr. Steven 

Fuller.  He's going to talk about the economic benefits from 

having residential in the downtown area. 

  DR. FULLER:  Good evening.  It seems like such a 

leisurely pace tonight.  It's such a relief. 

  I was asked to look at the economic and physical 
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impacts of the development of 900 15th Street and I was asked to 

look at office use versus apartment use.  It's clear that some use 

is better than no use in terms of both economic and physical 

benefits and from just a sort of theoretical standpoint an office 

use in this location might be considered a logical use since it's 

surrounded by office functions, knowing that just personally from 

urban planning background that residential uses in a downtown area 

is a good objective considering how to do this in a -- how to 

achieve residential use in this location often requires some kind 

of other financial considerations inasmuch in the pure market 

sense an office function is worth more than a residential function 

of the same building in a downtown location. 

  It's obvious that the work to build or convert and 

renovate this structure as either an office building or an 

apartment building involves a lot of the same work, even though 

the spaces would be a little bit different, the costs don't differ 

very much and the construction activity, roughly $23,000.000.00 

would generate some additional employment and some additional 

income during the actual two year construction period.  There is 

not much difference between the renovation use for office or 

apartment in this context.   

  So, the benefits are clear.  In general terms they 

would endure as long as that process took place.  The current tax 

revenues generated by this building are roughly $107,000.00 right 

now.  During the construction phase alone it would generate about 
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$273,000.00, so from a city's financial standpoint the renovation 

process for either -- basically, for any kind of reuse within the 

envelop of this building would be clearly beneficial over the 

current condition. 

  When one looks at the alternative uses of this 

progress for apartments or offices, the important difference then 

becomes who is in the building?  And, as one tracks all of the 

different kinds of spending that flow from office workers or from 

apartment workers, the numbers begin to diverge considerably in 

favor of the apartment use.  In total, an office use of this 

function would generate in direct and indirect benefits to the 

city something slightly less than $3,000,000.00 per year and 

generate roughly $700,000.00 per year in personal earnings for 

District residence, about 30 new jobs, not counting the office 

workers, jobs either in the on-site restaurant function or off-

site in support of this building. 

  In contrast or in comparison, the apartment 

building would generate almost $5,000,000.00 of direct impact, 

support 56 jobs and generate a $1,100,000.00 in personal earnings. 

 So, the difference is roughly $2,000,000.00 a year.  To keep it 

simple, about 70 percent more, from a city budget standpoint, the 

city benefits in revenues, by about 70 percent more by building or 

support the apartment use of this as opposed to the office use and 

in terms of jobs and income the benefits are somewhat similar -- 

of similar magnitude. 
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  So, those are sort of economic flows.  If you 

translate that into tax benefits, the apartment building also 

would look much more desirable to the city than the -- than an 

office use.  From a real estate standpoint, the office building 

generates twice as much in taxes than the apartment building.  

Now, that's about the only major benefit on the side of the office 

building. 

  In terms of retail sales, meals tax, restaurant 

parking tax, utility taxes, the apartment building is more 

productive.  The big difference, however, is in income tax.  More 

residence in the District generates more tax benefits.  This kind 

of building -- either building would generate about the same 

demand on city services, no major demand on the educational 

system.  In terms of fire and police and other kinds of services 

that's really a wash.  So, the difference is on the revenue side. 

  

  A point was raised when we were here a couple weeks 

back that, well, maybe it's possible that not all of the residents 

of this building would pay taxes here.  In my analysis I assume 

that given the price range of this and the design of this 

apartment and the income ranges and the target audience is 

primarily people who work downtown, too busy to cut grass, don't 

want to commute and want to be downtown, walk to work or ride 

metro.  But, it is conceivable that some portion of the residents 

might not be tax payers.   
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  The income tax that I've calculated, based on full 

occupancy, is $732,000.00 a year.  $732,000.00 -- the difference 

between an office use and an apartment use, including the personal 

income tax, is $738,000.00 a year.  So, if none of these residents 

were tax payers, this project would still be better than an office 

use, not much, just a few bucks.  But, clearly, some of these 

residents are going to be tax payers.  I would think that most of 

them would be.  But, I don't know and I don't think anybody knows 

exactly what most means, 85 percent or possibly all? 

   I lived in a building downtown, at one point in my 

life, and there were a few World Bank residents who didn't pay 

taxes, so it's possible.  It was a more convenient location near 

the World Bank than this, but still if all of the residents are 

tax payers, income tax payers -- of course, they all pay food tax 

or meals tax.  They all pay retail sales tax and I haven't 

included gasoline tax in here, but there are some other taxes that 

would flow to the benefit of the city as well.  All of these would 

be paid by the residents, regardless of whether they were tax 

exempt for personal income tax purposes, but if they all did pay 

taxes, 75 percent higher rate of return to the city's treasury 

from an apartment use, compared to an office us.  So, that might 

be a slight overstatement, but it's clear that apartment use is 

really an advantage to the District, from just a pure monetary tax 

revenue basis, setting aside the living downtown and the other 

benefits that would accrue to having 24 hour, seven day a week 
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residents in the District. 

  So, I think the bottom line is that wherever 

residential uses can be encouraged within the District, this is 

good for the District's budget.  This kind of residential use 

places no extraordinary demands on public services and so there 

aren't offsetting expenses that would suggest that the residential 

would be less attractive than a non-residential use at this 

location.  Thank you. 

  MR. EPTING:  And, our final witness, I guess 

batting cleanup, is Steve Sher.  He's going to talk about the land 

use planning impacts and the TDR implications and zoning 

implications of this proposal. 

  MR. SHER:  Mr. Chairman, members of the Commission, 

for the record my name is Steven Sher, the Director of Zoning 

Services with the law firm of Wilkes Artis.  I think you will be 

handed momentarily a report that I prepared and it's dated with 

the date of the last hearing.  I haven't significantly changed it 

some, because I don't think what I had to say has changed 

significantly since then. 

  You know what this amendment is about and you know 

what the effect of it is.  Again, we're clarifying that this 

applies within the central employment area, but outside the 

boundaries of the Downtown Development District and because the C-

4 is mapped only within the central employment area and because 

the Zoning Commission has already determined to award bonus 
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density for housing constructed anywhere within the DD.  So, 

that's already taken care of. 

  What we're looking at then is the C-4 zone that's 

outside the Downtown Development District.  To backup just a 

little bit in historical terms on what the Commission did with the 

Downtown Development District, when the DD was adopted originally 

in 1991 it did not aware bonus density for housing anywhere.  You 

just didn't get it.  You built a department store you got a bonus. 

 You built certain kinds of arch uses you got a bonus.  You built 

housing you got nothing.  So, the Zoning Commission in 1991 gave 

no recognition to any kind of extra density or bonus for housing. 

  I think it's been pretty clear, and I'm not saying 

this is necessarily the only cause and effect, but there has been 

no new un-subsidized housing built within the Downtown Development 

District.  Now, I'm not saying it's necessarily because of that, 

but it just didn't happen.   

  In 1998 the Zoning Commission determined to change 

those regulations to aware bonus density for housing anywhere in 

DD, not just in the housing priority areas, but anywhere within 

DD.  And, the Commission has also expanded the use of combined lot 

development to encourage housing in downtown and I think the order 

on that just got published in the D.C. Register last Friday.  

That's a case you voted on for 1301 L Street, in terms of looking 

at trying to get people to do housing. 

22 

23 

24 

25   So, the Commission has switched, within the 
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Downtown Development District, its view of whether it was 

appropriate to grant bonuses for housing.  In the first place it 

said no, nowhere.  In the second place it has said now, 

everywhere, not just in housing priority areas, but anywhere 

within the Downtown Development District.  

  Now, we're not within the Downtown Development 

District.  If we were, we wouldn't be here, but we are within the 

central employment area.  We are actually McPherson Square from 

the boundaries of downtown as defined in the Comprehensive Plan, 

which is 15th Street.  So, you could, you know, take Anne's slide 

and say, you know, where she was standing when she took that last 

picture was in downtown and this building is not.  So, therefore, 

is there really that big a difference in terms of what we're 

trying to accomplish here? 

  I have, as has become my custom, gone through the 

Comprehensive Plan, because it is this Commission's responsibility 

to have its regulations not inconsistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan.  And, there are some very specific and direct instructions 

in the Comprehensive Plan as to whether this amendment is 

consistent or not consistent with that plan.  And, let me cite a 

couple of them.  They're in the report and I've gone through all 

of them.  But, let me highlight a couple of them. 

  Section 1108.1(i), encourage the continued 

diversification of land uses in the central employment area, 

outside of downtown, including the development of cultural and 
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recreational activity centers and of housing.  Now, that's us.  

We're within the central employment area.  We're not within the 

boundaries of downtown as downtown is defined in the Comprehensive 

Plan, because that's 15th Street.  We're on the other side of the 

street.  So, that's us.  We're in the CEA, we're not downtown and 

we're developing housing.  Encourage the continued diversification 

of land uses, including housing. 

  Section 205.2(c), economic development element.  

Economic development in downtown and the central employment area. 

 Again, here we are.  Not downtown, but in the central employment 

area.  Provide for the use of incentives to assist in achieving 

the Plan's objectives, especially for housing.  Here we are.  

Okay.  I don't want to make this sound silly, but this is what the 

Plan says.   

  Encourage and assist development and employment 

growth in other parts of the central employment area, that's other 

than downtown, with emphasis on achieving the mix of land uses, 

residential and commercial, that promote increased economic 

activity in the evenings and weekends as well as during the 

workday, 205.2(f). 

  Encourage multi-unit housing development near 

selective metro-rail stations at locations adjacent to downtown 

and adjacent to proposed employment centers and office areas.  Do 

I need to say it again?  Here we are.  It's in here.  It is 

unequivocal in my view that the Plan supports the amendment that 
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you have before you. 

  Now, there are many policies in the downtown 

element that talk about encouraging housing.  If you want to take 

the strict literalist view, I won't talk about them, because 

that's the other side of the street.  But, if you take the view 

that what is important and significant for the downtown is perhaps 

equally as important and significant for the rest of the central 

area of the District of Columbia, you can look at pages 5, 6 and 7 

of my outline and see the sections in the downtown element that 

talk to the creation of housing.   

  One of the issues that was raised in terms of what 

we were doing here was what impact were we going to have on these 

TDR receiving zones that were created to assist in the achieving 

of a whole variety of things in the Downtown Development District. 

 Now, again, remember, the original Downtown Development District 

didn't contemplate doing anything for housing.   

  The original DD included only two receiving zones, 

the new downtown receiving zone which is essentially west of 19th 

Street and the downtown east receiving zone, which is east of the 

center like freeway.  And, attached to the back of the outline you 

will see maps of all five receiving zones.  The Commission created 

three new receiving zones, Capital, Capital Southwest and North 

Capital, much more recently, back in 1998, less than two years 

ago. 

  We looked at -- most of the receiving zones -- the 
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TDR activity has been in the two older receiving zones in Downtown 

East and New Downtown.  We said, let's assume for the moment that 

those are all filled up, that there isn't any more capacity to 

receive TDRs there.  I don't know that that's 100 percent true, 

but we took that as an assumption.  So, we said, let's look at the 

other three and see what is the capacity.  In those three 

receiving zone there is the capacity to absorb approximately 

19,000,000 square feet of TDRs.   

  Now, what we did was we went through square by 

square, almost lot by lot, and we said there are some building 

that are relatively new that aren't going to go anywhere in the 

short of medium term.  We took those out.  We took vacant sites.  

We took underdeveloped sites.  We looked at the sites that said 

conceivably could these site be redeveloped in some reasonably 

foreseeable time frame.  If you're taking the long term view, you 

could have taken everything, because that's five years old now is 

going to be 25 or 30 years old 25 or 30 years from now and might 

be redeveloped then.  But, we said, we didn't take that.  We just 

said, let's see what's sort of foreseeable now and when you apply 

the three and a half FAR or the two and a half FAR, depending on 

the width of the street and the height of the building, you get 

19,000,000 square feet. 

  The balance of those TDRs' supply and demand is 

constantly changing.  It's changing as projects come on line that 

earn TDRs, then the supply goes up.  The supply goes down when 
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somebody buys them and builds a building and there are any number 

of buildings that have been constructed or are under construction 

that use TDRs.  The price of TDRs varies as a function of supply 

and demand.  It depends on how many TDRs you want, when in the 

market cycle you're looking to buy or sell, where you're looking 

to use them and where you're looking to buy them from and that's 

something that over the not quite 10 years that the Downtown 

Development District has been in effect has changed.  It's changed 

over time.  And, as Mr. Epting indicated in his opening statement, 

the substantial number of TDRs that are available have all been 

created less than 15 months ago.  They haven't been on the market 

all that long compared to some others that have been on the 

market.  

  As an example, the Manulife building at 555 12th 

Street is a building that's about 10 years old.  It reserved space 

in it for a department building, department store.  The department 

store didn't get built.  They converted that space when the 

Commission amended the regulations and now they're talking about 

anchor type tenants in there.  They aren't TDRs.  They've never 

sold them.  They haven't sold them yet.  The building is 10 years 

old, plus or minus.  So, they made decision that they weren't 

ready to sell the TDRs at any price that they were being offered. 

  I think they're looking to sell them now is what 

we've been told by the broker who is representing the owner of 

that building, but that was 10 years.  Others have sold more 
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quickly because the price was right, because someone was looking 

for the right size to match the number that were available and so 

forth.  As I think Mr. Epting has indicating and as Office of 

Planning has had some discussions with us, the Commission can fix 

that balance in the future if that becomes necessary.  God forbid 

everybody builds housing and we have too many TDRs.  I think that 

would be terrific for the city if that were to happen, but if we 

needed to do something to adjust where TDRs need to go, if you 

need to designate additional receiving zones, if you need to 

determine at some point that maybe we don't need TDRs anymore, 

maybe that happens.  As I said, you've already done that once.  

You didn't have them in 1991 and now in 2000 we do. 

  I don't think that we're putting the city in the 

position of saying this is something that is inimical in anyway, 

this is something that would impair or inhibit anyone else from 

doing that which is either required or incented under any of the 

Commission's regulations and I just think that this is something 

that makes a great deal of sense in terms of trying to encourage 

two things.  This is a two-for.  You get housing and preservation. 

 And, that's the way we define the amendment.  It's not just one 

or the other.  You got to do both.   

  I would like to throw in an extra added thought 

here, which is something that did occur to me since the last time 

and that has to do with other incentives.  This proposal to award 

TDRs or bonus density for this has no negative financial impact on 
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the District's finances.  It doesn't ask for tax abatement or it 

doesn't ask for tax increment financing.  It doesn't in anyway ask 

the city to devote any of its financial resources to make this 

happen.   

  Now right now we seem to be on the edge or maybe at 

the peak of a very boom time for the city and revenues are flowing 

into the city's treasury at pretty good rates.  And, yet, as most 

recently as Monday of this week Congresswoman Norton said 

projections for the four or five year period don't look so hot and 

we need to think about what other alternative sources of revenues 

there might be.  And, that had to do with her plan to try and 

create some additional income revenue stream to the District from 

non-resident commuters.   

  If we were to ask for tax abatement, something 

which the city has never shown any inclination to give period, but 

if you were to say, okay, for 10 years you don't pay any property 

tax abatement, you don't pay any property taxes, what happens in 

five years or six years when the city's income stream don't look 

so hot?  We're not asking for that.  We're not in that position.  

And, frankly, if someone had said you could have it, it would be 

great, because you can factor that in up front, you know that's a 

cost that's not coming out of your pocket every year, but that's 

not where we are.   

  We haven't asked the city for that kind of relief. 

 We haven't asked the city to undertake that kind of burden.  What 
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we're asking for is an opportunity to see if we can sell these 

TDRs at some price that will give some economic return to this 

project at the middle or the back end.  It doesn't come up front. 

 It comes either when the project is half done or all done or 

depending on how you determine, if you do, to award these TDRs and 

when we get the opportunity to try and go out and sell them. 

  Having said all that, I conclude, as I said, 

unequivocally that this is not inconsistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan, that it creates no adverse impact on the supply or demand 

ratio of TDRs and that it doesn't result in over saturating the 

capacity of the existing receiving zone, certainly, that it will 

encourage both housing and historic preservation and I believe 

that you should approve this as we have presented it to you.  I 

will just note that the calculations on the 19,000,000 square feet 

are attached on a square by square basis if you want to look at 

them.  And, if you don't, they're still attached.  And, I'm done. 

  MR. EPTING:  And, that does conclude our 

presentation.  Even though this is a rule making, I would like the 

opportunity to have a concluding statement at the end if 

permitted. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  We'll see. 

  Commissioners, we have absorbed a lot of 

information just from the applicant and I want to know whether or 

not we saw a need to change the statement I made earlier about 

hearing from both sides, the applicant and then OP and then asking 
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questions or is there a pressing need that we ask questions now, 

or would you like to proceed with the statement that I made 

earlier? 

  VICE CHAIR MITTEN:  I'm happy to proceed with the 

way you originally laid it out. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  Mr. Franklin? 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  That's fine with me.  I 

would hope that OP would limit its presentation to any points that 

the applicant made with which they have some qualification or 

disagreement. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  Okay.  So, with that we 

will now have the report of the Office of Planning.  I see we've 

been joined by the director, Mr. Andy Altman.  I don't know who 

was going to speak, but I was just acknowledging you. 

  MR. ALTMAN:  I was just thinking about Mr. 

Franklin's comment.  Actually, we're going to start the 

presentation with Art Rogers and I think we will be brief, so that 

we can just have more discussion, I think, with the applicant and 

with the Commission.  I think most have had time to review the 

body of the report.  I think the issues are fairly clear, so maybe 

Art would just raise a couple of points and then we'll proceed to 

discussion. 

  Because I think, as we've said, just to frame this, 

we are not opposing the project per se.  As Mr. Epting said, it's 

a rule making, so it's an issue of the policy as opposed to the 
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project.  So, we're not disputing, for example, Professor Fuller's 

discussion of impacts.  In fact, we fully support his analysis.  

In fact, we're arguing for some time and it will continue about 

the economic benefits of housing which we think are indisputable 

and are in complete agreement on that point.  So, it is not a 

question of is it office versus housing.  In fact, we are not 

promoting office use at this site, as opposed to housing.  The 

question was the broader policy issue that we were concerned about 

and we did discuss and we can discuss this further in the remarks 

about the notion of a time limit or a way to revisit so you could 

actually look and see the impact on the market of the proposed 

change and have a chance to revisit the whole TDR question at that 

point and we would be happy to discuss that further, because we 

have had subsequent discussions with Summit Properties directly on 

that point. 

  Why don't I turn to Art Rogers and you can hit a 

few of the key issues. 

  MR. ROGERS:  Okay.  Thank you.  My name is Art 

Rogers.  I am with the Office of Planning and I will be presenting 

our response to the Summit case and as Andy said, we found 

ourselves in the unenviable task of recommending against the 

zoning request that would propose, you know, encouraging housing 

and historic preservation in the central business district. 

  In reviewing the request we found that it had 

considerable merits.  Summit has an excellent reputation.  The 
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project represents historic preservation of a very high degree and 

we checked with the Historic Preservation Board on this and 

finally it does bring housing to downtown.   

  However, the Office of Planning has been working 

very hard in encouraging housing in the area of the Downtown 

Development District.  For instance we are engaging right now on a 

downtown action plan which will address perhaps, hopefully, some 

of the reasons why we have not had housing downtown in the past 

several years.  And, in fact, we have been in discussion with many 

developers who think now is the time for housing downtown and they 

are proceeding in going through their pre-development stages.   

  And, that's part of our concern that this text 

change will weaken those efforts.  And, it comes down to two 

things.  The Comp Plan does provide strong language for supporting 

housing and historic preservation, but it does this by saying 

efforts should be focused on concentrating housing to achieve a 

neighborhood field that will help develop the critical mass for 

the complimentary services.  And, that was the goal, it's my 

understanding and I'm new at the Office of Planning, as I said, 

that that was the goals of the development district, that the 

housing priority areas and the development district were 

attempting to take very limited public resources and incentives 

and focus them to achieve housing in areas that were determined to 

be where was the most viable.   

  And, I would like to refer to our map and I have 
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copies of here that it demonstrates that the Summit project does 

not fall within the development district.  And, in fact, it's 

several blocks away from the nearest housing priority area.  And, 

finally, in reference to the Comp Plan, it's very important that 

actions that the Office of Planning take when considering downtown 

is that our recommendations and this is the mantra that has been 

drilled into my head since I got here, things should be 

understandable, predictable and competitive.  And, in a sense 

taking a publicly created good and changing the dynamics by which 

the market operates I think should be decided with special care. 

  And, it's really the precedent that this proposal 

makes that we are most concerned about.  We admit and in our 

discussions with the Ms. Ford of Wilkes Artis, that -- I'm sorry, 

of Summit Properties, that the actual impacts to the TDRs, the 

value of TDRs, just from their proposal would be very limited and 

even with the long list of sites that was mentioned, it would 

still probably be very limited.  However, again, it's the 

precedent that it sets by expanding TDRs based on a project's 

request. 

  The second thing I would like to address, the 

discussion of the value of TDRs and their effectiveness as an 

incentive.  Currently, it is definitely in a state of flux.  They 

dropped dramatically even just from last year.  We've heard 

they've gone from about $20.00 per square foot down now to below 

$10.00 a square foot.  And, so therefore the value is marginal at 
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best at this time.  And, I stress at this time, because again, 

over the long term we hope that this will equalize. 

  It's important to say that there are several 

potential projects right now in the development district that are 

in various stages of pre-development and it is these projects that 

any changes will effect.  It's especially true of the historic 

preservation projects that are going on, because the regulations 

do allow for 25 percent of the TDRs to be vested immediately for 

historic preservation.  And, I would like to clarify this.  In our 

discussions with Summit we suggested that or we advocated that 

there be no change to that provision.  When discussing the 25 

percent provision it was strictly for historic preservation and 

not for any generated by housing.  So, that's essentially the 

current TDRs regulations.   

  Now, we both agree that value of TDRs is not going 

to make or break any project, nor should it.  It only acts as an 

incentive and as a limited incentive we want to state that it 

should be focused and concentrated on the existing areas that have 

been determined.   

  And, once again, it's to achieve a critical mass 

for a neighborhood to be developed.  And, as I said, the 

complimentary uses that goes along with that neighborhood.   

  In addressing the receiving zones, looking at the 

charts that have been provided the applicant on the southwest 

receiving zone and the North Capital receiving zone, I would like 
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to point out that there is 44.9 million square feet of developable 

land or square feet, total square feet in those receiving zones, 

without the benefit of TDRs.  Now, to completely build that out is 

going to take a very long time.  And, in fact, we've talked to 

some people who think that right now developers aren't even 

considering TDRs for those areas, because the market could not 

absorb the additional square feet. 

  And, those are essentially the main reasons why we 

felt that, you know, we just could not in good conscience 

recommend the applicant's proposal. 

  In discussing with Summit, we discussed several 

things in hopefully trying to address this situation.  They stated 

that maybe there be an expiration date or a period after say two 

to three, maybe four years the Office of Planning would review the 

amendment and see how it effected the TDRs.  And, we just wanted 

to say we could find very little precedent in past decisions on 

any sort of temporary provision like that.   

  We also discussed if there was a change in the TDRs 

radios, given that they were outside of the development district. 

 You know, was there justification in saying, well, okay, you're 

outside the development district, then what about if you got one 

for one TDRs instead of the two for one that they proposed for the 

entire project?  And, I would like to provide the Committee a 

chart I have here that gives some of the examples -- some of the 

alternatives that we discussed. 
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  The first is their proposal as is written where 

their project would generate 200,000 TDRs roughly.  We also 

discussed what if only the historic preservation and housing would 

get two for one and that means the remaining TDRs would be 

generated by the lost envelop they have and also that the new 

housing would strictly get one for one.  And, that generated 

157,000. 

  Alternative 2, which is where essentially it's just 

the one for one ratio for the lost envelop, the historic housing 

and the new housing and that generated 117,000.  And, I wanted to 

add that it's this alternative 2, which a project in the DD north 

of Massachusetts would receive if they were going to do a similar 

project.  So, as written, their proposal is actually superior, 

provides them superior incentives to what housing projects north 

of Massachusetts would receive. 

  And, then finally, alternative 3 is just the lost 

envelop due to the fact that it's a historic preservation project. 

 And, that's the difference between the square feet from the 

building and the allowable envelop, the full FAR of the allowable 

envelop.   

  So, again, I wanted to point out that their 

proposal as written is superior to the north of Massachusetts 

TDRs.   

  To summarize, and I am very brief here, I don't 

have much more to say, again, we feel there is insufficient 
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justification to prove a precedent setting text change that could 

lead to the decivilation of one of the few available incentives to 

historic preservation and preferred uses in the Downtown 

Development District.  In addition, their request, as I said, is 

actually superior to identical projects located north of 

Massachusetts would received. 

  An, in conclusion, if the Commission should decide 

to approve their request, we would highly recommend that it be a 

very strict interpretation and that the TDRs to be generated 

should only be on the historic preservation and not the historic 

preservation for housing and not the new housing.  We estimate 

that this would generate about 17,000 square feet and we admit in 

conversations with them that even the other alternatives that I've 

mentioned on the chart, nothing short of their two for one would 

help them meet their goals. 

  Secondly, we see no justification in changing the 

current percent by which it can be vested upon the building 

permit.  For historic preservation it states 25 percent can be 

vest upon the building permit, with the approval of the Historic 

Preservation Board and the Office of Planning.  We see no 

justification in changing that and that's only for, again, the 

historic preservation point.  Housing vests only when there is a 

certificate of occupancy given for the project. 

  And, finally, one thing we're very concerned about 

is the Commission should make it very clear that any buildings 
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falling under Summit's proposal will not receive privileges under 

Section 1708.1 of the Downtown Development District and that 

enables historic sites in the DD, but outside of the priority 

areas, to act as receiving sites for combined lot.  Combined lot 

is our club to making sure that housing gets built.  And, we think 

that would greatly weaken the housing priorities' effectiveness. 

  And, finally, I would like to suggest we haven't 

talked at all if there should be any sort of but for test.  You 

know, we haven't asked for their development numbers, but I 

noticed in Mr. Fuller's presentation that they stated that the 

direct hard costs and softs costs for the project would be 

$18,000,000.00.  And, again, we haven't mentioned if there should 

be a but for test for expanding the TDRs.  But, it occurs to me 

that the Commission might want to ask Summit and Wilkes Artis to 

mention what might be the current market value of a condominium, 

because I think that's the easiest one to evaluate, the current 

market for a condominium in the downtown area.  So, what might 

they project as the average market value of a condominium.  And, 

that might help us understand if a but for test should be applied 

to expanding this regulation. 

  And, that's where I would like to conclude. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  Thank you.   Ms. 

McCarthy. 

  MS. McCARTHY:  There were just a couple of things 

that I wanted to add that specifically responded to some of the 
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points that were made tonight.  

  First, with regard to the market for TDRs, the 

Office of Planning -- it's not correct to say we only looked at 

the first two receiving zones that were created.  We, in fact, 

looked at the market in all five receiving zones and what we saw 

was office projects, in some cases which were going ahead without 

purchasing transfers of development rights because of perceptions 

that either the office market in those zones was not sufficient 

robust to make it necessary to purchase TDRs, when in fact the 

matter of right density on the site was sufficient for the office 

project to proceed or a perception that land could be purchased 

for as much or less than the cost of purchasing new TDRs.   

  If that were the case, and if that continues to be 

the case, then it means that even in those receiving zones there 

is not going to be substantial absorption of TDRs.  We also heard 

from people in the office market that the decisions made about the 

perspective locations for the new Department of Transportation had 

substantially reduced the likelihood of big purchases of TDRs, 

particularly in the North Capital Street Receiving Zone area.  

  And, we didn't just look at the last 15 months.  We 

looked at the amount of TDRs existing now, the 1.5 million that 

you can see in your charts.  We also looked at the amount of TDRs 

expected to be dumped on the market just in the next few years.  

From three projects alone that are already in the pipeline, as you 

saw in our report, there will 2.5 million square feet of TDRs 
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available.  So, it's 4 million square feet of TDRs just from, you 

know, just from projects existing or projects that are within the 

pipeline that we know are coming along within the downtown.   

  And, doesn't count -- I mean, we should add that 

almost daily at the Office of Planning we get calls from 

perspective developers of housing in the downtown.  It's great 

after all these years of feeling like we were the only ones saying 

that housing was important and desirable and it's terrific to hear 

Professor Fuller's report talking about how office is more 

valuable for the District -- I mean, how housing is more valuable 

for the District than office space.  You know, we used to make 

that point, in fact, we used to make it to some of the people that 

are on the opposite side now and people weren't believing us, so 

it's really nice to hear that coming now and to see some 

documentation of that being the case. 

  But, our last point with regard to the market for 

TDRs is basically that the market is not determined by present 

supply or even by what is likely to be the future demand over 20 

years.  The market is governed by what is the present supply and 

the perception of future supply and demand.  And, that we have 

been told from the real estate brokers who represent TDRs sales, 

who we have talked to, the ones that told us that even at $7.50 a 

square foot they can't sell TDRs that are on the market now, that 

because people see that 5 million or that 4 million square feet of 

TDRs to be delivered in the next few years, that effects the 
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willingness of anybody in the immediate time period or in the 

short term time period, to purchase TDRs because of a sense that 

they will be available.  Why sign a contract now because in the 

next year or in the next few years the price is likely to go even 

lower as more and more TDRs are dumped on the market?   

  It's things like that that make us say maybe we 

need to look seriously about expanding the supply of TDRs because 

of the destabilization of the market.   

  Mr. Epting says at worst we may get some housing 

and some preservation and if that were our perception that that 

was the worst that would happen from this project, we would be 

embracing it in a minute.  As we've said, we think it's a great 

project and we think Summit is a terrific developer.  Our concern 

is that at worst you, the Commissioners, will be besieged by 

developers of perspective housing projects three blocks to the 

north or two blocks to the east or Mr. Bauden is here.   

  We've already received inquiries from the church 

who, as you may know, there was a Comprehensive Plan amendment 

which was included in the last round of Comprehensive Plan 

amendments, that any historic church anywhere in the city should 

be able to receive transfers of development rights for restoring 

or for fixing up historic churches.  So, we were looking to keep 

the definition and the controls over TDRs as restrictive as 

possible, not in any punitive measure about the Summit project, 

but just because we know that once we start expanding the rules 
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for granting TDRs without a very specific basis, without the 

specific basis that exists now within the DDD regs and the Comp 

Plan, we're just not sure where the line can be drawn and we're 

afraid that that incentive then becomes substantially devalued.  

  There is, as you know, an explicit policy to 

provide TDRs to encourage housing in the DD.  We've heard a lot 

about that.  The reason that it's in the DD or is placed in there 

in the DD because that is where housing is required, not where the 

market has developers already interested in producing housing 

without a requirement.  Given that we are besieged by developers 

who are interested in doing housing, both within the DD 

boundaries, but also in the west end, the Logan Circle area, above 

Logan Circle area and in the waterfront area.  We're not sure that 

it's necessary to provide a substantial increase in the potential 

incentives for housing, particularly in light of the fact, as Art 

pointed out, that was is being proposed is a more generous TDR 

ration than would apply for those have a housing requirement on 

their property north of Massachusetts Avenue, which is no longer a 

low land cost district, particularly with the coming of the 

convention center. 

  Lastly, on the issue of vesting, for housing 

vesting does not relate to a lease or a issuance of the building 

permit.  It relates to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy 

which helps guarantee that housing is created.  That's why we were 

proposing that that standard not be abandoned.  The 25 percent 
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which is provided is only for historic preservation TDRs to 

provide a source of capital for non-profit organizations like 

churches that need to expend funds for fixing up their building 

before they can achieve TDRs. 

  So, those are the three major points I wanted to 

make.  If the Commission wants to go ahead and wants to pursue 

broadening the possibility of applying TDRs, we would, as Margaret 

Smith-Ford mentioned, we have talked about the possibility of some 

sort of time limit being applied so that we aren't necessarily 

destabilizing the market in TDRs and people know there is a time 

certain beyond which there will not be additional TDRs generated 

or that it be limited, perhaps, only individual landmarks and not 

to contributing buildings for historic districts, because I think 

as you saw when Ms. Adams when through the list, there are a 

finite number of designated landmarks and there are, as we've 

admitted all along, a relatively small number of those that are 

likely to be converted for housing purposes, or that we look at a 

ration of TDRs on a one for one basis so that it is at least 

comparable to the ratio that's granted north of Massachusetts 

Avenue for housing in the DDD and it's not more generous than what 

we are providing for places where we are requiring people to 

construct housing.  Thanks. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  Thank you.  I think what 

we will do now is call on commissioners.  We have some questions. 

 We've heard a presentation both from the application.  We've also 
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heard a presentation from the Office of Planning.  We will start 

our questioning.  Anyone can lead off if they want to. 

  COMMISSIONER MITTEN:  I'll jump in.  During the 

examination that you all did of the sites that are likely to -- 

the ones Ms. Adams went through, then sort of the short list of 

the sides, which would be those projects that have any real 

legitimate potential for residential, did you do a calculation to 

say, if they all went residential this is how many TDRs would be 

generated? 

  MR. SHER:  No. 

  COMMISSIONER MITTEN:  Because that would be 

interesting, just an interesting other number to include in the 

mix.  Now, I'm going to depart from you for a second. 

  And, say to the Office of Planning folks, what do 

you consider, you've used this term, Ellen in particular has used 

the term destabilizing the marketing for TDRs.   What does that 

mean? 

  MS. McCARTHY:  I should add that really came out of 

a session we had with the downtown developers round table in 

which, you know, we went to them and said, here is this proposal. 

 You people are developers in the downtown.  What would your sense 

be about it?  And, I mean, there was definitely a mix of feelings 

with the sentiment of some people saying, well, why wouldn't we 

want to provide incentives for, you know, housing wherever. 

  But, there were also people there who were 
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contemplating constructing housing who said, right now the value 

of TDRs is so much in flux and so undependable we never -- we 

cannot use that when we go to a lender as part of our proforma, 

but we do consider it for our own calculation of our rate of 

return and just at the point in time in which we're likely to be 

selling these, if the Zoning Commission begins granting expansions 

of the right to generate TDRs, we're afraid that the impact on 

potential buyers of our TDRs will be to say, well, we're just 

going to wait, because, you know, this market may expand a lot 

more than it is even now and if that's the case, we don't want to 

commit ourselves prematurely when there may be a further expansion 

of TDRs and a resulting drop in the value later on. 

  COMMISSIONER MITTEN:  Okay.  So, what I got out of 

what you said is your phrase of destabilizing the market for TDRs 

is that there is a price change? 

  MS. McCARTHY:  Well, it's more than that.  At least 

now anybody can do the calculation that Wilkes Artis has presented 

tonight of looking at the receiving zones, saying at least on 

paper what's the potential.  That's what's known now about the 

receiving zones and they can look at the sending zones and they 

can say, based on the sending zones and what the incentives are 

and what the entitlements are, this is likely to be the supply.   

  If, however, the Commission responds to individual 

requests and makes a text amendment change where there is not 

necessarily a clearer basic in the Comprehensive Plan or a clear 
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basic in prior zoning text, then the destabilization occurs in 

that nobody knows for sure, well, what will the Commission 

determine -- decide next month or the month after that about what 

uses will be able to generate TDRs.  And, that's, I think, what 

they meant more about the destabilization. 

  COMMISSIONER MITTEN:  Okay.  You mentioned that 

there are three projects that are in the pipeline now that have 

the potential to generate or that will generate 2.5 million square 

feet of TDRs.  Given that, at least according to, I think, the 

view of the Office of Planning that that's just going to glut the 

market further, you know, drive the prices into nickels and dimes 

and all of that.  Why would those people generate TDRs?  Why, if 

there is no benefit or there is no perceived benefit, why are they 

doing the things that are going to create those TDRs in the first 

place? 

  MS. McCARTHY:  Well, first of all those projects 

already made a decision to go forward and in some cases, in the 

case of Gallery Place, they already had a tax increment financing, 

which was subsidizing in the case of Square 457.  It was a GAS 

project and the cost of the land was written down, so, you know, I 

believe they made a decision to go forward not based on the -- 

they had other incentives that caused them to be interested at the 

time and their feeling was whatever we are able to get in the way 

of TDRs, we're looking at, in terms of sweetening our financial 

picture, but we've been able to satisfy our lenders already that 
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we've got sufficient -- that our balance sheet shows sufficient 

robustness that it could justify the lending. 

  COMMISSIONER MITTEN:  Okay.  And, then isn't that 

what Mr. Rogers said, too, which is that these projects do not 

rise or fall on TDRs. 

  MS. McCARTHY:  That's what we heard from the 

downtown developers round table and so it was discouraging because 

here we are with what was the only incentive that had been 

envisioned for housing being told that that's not even a very 

powerful incentive anymore, but obviously there are, you know, 

some of this is telling us no, that's not the case and, in fact, 

it's a sufficient incentive that it, you know, it helps make this 

project worth doing.  So, sense is there are other developers out 

there that feel that same way, particularly when you're talking 

about south of Massachusetts Avenue and you're getting a two for 

one TDRs deal 

  COMMISSIONER MITTEN:  Okay.  So, my sense then is 

that in spite of the fact that there is this notion that the value 

associated with has, at least temporarily been driven down 

significantly.  We have someone who, maybe foolishly, is saying 

"Can I have some?"  So, how do you jive all that?  How do you 

reconcile all of that? 

  MR. ROGERS:  I think it's important to note that 

for historic preservation projects in the downtown the immediate 

value, the short term value of TDRs is very important, because 
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again, of that 25 percent provision where they can use that money 

that they can sell immediately as a seed to start their work on 

their project.  So, to them there is a very important concern and 

in fact we talked to the property manager of the Arch Dioceses and 

he was very clear that there is a very important value, immediate 

value for historic preservation projects.    Again, when there 

is essentially very little economic return as in the case of a 

church, and so that's why I wanted to address on that. 

  MR. ALTMAN:  Did you have another -- go ahead. 

  MS. McCARTHY:  I have a different question, so if 

you want to say anything else about that particular line, go 

ahead.  No?  Okay. 

  COMMISSIONER MITTEN:  I think the second part of 

the response from Art, too, it's mostly in the precedent value.  

It's to make sure if the Commission grants that there is some 

sense being provided that we are not opening the door to make TDRs 

available to any preferred user, anything that we would desire to 

see, just so that we maintain some effectiveness as an incentive. 

  MR. ALTMAN:  Let me just add then the point, 

because this is somewhat speculative, this discussion.  I mean in 

the sense is there an impact, is there not an impact, how much 

does it matter to a project, how much does it not matter to a 

project?  There is so many factors.  I think what's clear, what 

everyone has said is you're not going to necessarily go to the 

bank for TDRs, because there is such fluctuation.  It's an 
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additional benefit.  It could be a significant additional benefit, 

it may not be.  It's varies. 

  I think our concern was because in some ways the 

speculative nature of this, when we've been working on polices to 

encourage housing in our housing priority areas and you've over a 

number of years set up both a regulatory structure and now an 

incentive structure in terms of TDRs and as Steve Sher readily 

pointed out, it has taken significant public investment as well in 

order to encourage that house, whether that was the PADC or 

whether it's GSA at 457 or Gallery Place.   

  When I think Ellen speaks of destabilizing, I think 

of it more in the sense that we didn't want to do anything that 

might harm those potential -- the housing priority area where so 

much has been built up in terms of trying to focus, to create that 

residential neighborhood and all of that package of incentives, 

whether it was the land right downs, whether it was TDRs, but the 

package public incentives, we didn't want to do something that 

might hurt that.  Do we know that it will definitely hurt that?  

Again, that's hard to say.  Our concern was just sort of 

protecting in a sense the policy framework that has been 

established over a number of years which we are now starting to 

see come to fruition. 

  COMMISSIONER MITTEN:  Okay.  I would like to ask 

you also to speak a little bit more about this idea of 

concentrating housing in the Downtown Development District and I 
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want to be sure that -- and remember -- you're going to have to 

remember very specifically who you are talking and you're talking 

to a women who lives downtown by my definition.  And, it's outside 

of the definition of the Downtown Development District.  Okay.  

So, I want you to explain to me the notion, the planning notion, 

that you create community and a multi-family environment by 

clustering building as opposed to the buildings themselves being 

communities.  And, that they need to be in this very close 

proximity to each other, versus, you know, a block or several 

blocks away. 

  So, given all of that, explain the notion to me, 

the concentration notion. 

  MR. ALTMAN:  I think it's not a question of 

mutually exclusive.  I think the question is the concentration -- 

you have a critical mass.  I think the housing priority area was 

based on having a critical mass of housing.  There is community 

within the buildings, clearly, because of the number of people and 

how you create that community.  Yes, sociological question we can 

insist, but the notion of -- when you see this now, I live 

downtown also and I live in a cluster, an area where there is 

beginning to be a clustering of that housing and what's now become 

the Penn Quarter neighborhood and in fact has named itself the 

Penn Quarter neighborhood, precisely because there has been 

between Market Square, 601 Pennsylvania, the Gold's Project, the 

Lexington. 
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  You're starting to see, I think, the benefit of 

that concentration of housing in terms of creating a neighborhood. 

 You see it in terms of the street life -- I see it in terms of 

the street life on the weekend.  It see what it does in terms of 

new restaurants opening.  I see it in terms of the vibrancy of an 

area, that it really creates an environment of a downtown 

residential neighborhood. 

  Now, I don't think that's to say that housing 

that's necessarily outside of that is misguided or wrong.  I think 

it just has a different effect than the clustering in the 

neighborhood.  I think that the 7th Street core, I think if you 

think ahead five years and look back, I often walk down 7th Street 

and imagine Gallery Place with 170 units, Square 457 with 405 

units, Hechts with another 50 units, give or take.  And, plus the 

units that are already there, you really will see a concentration 

in that neighborhood and have a very strong residential feel for a 

downtown urban neighborhood. 

  I think cities across the country as they 

revitalize their downtowns they've tried to very consciously 

create urban residential neighborhoods.  It adds value.  It shows 

that residential can work.  It attracts people.  It kind of has an 

effect that builds on itself.  Now, that's not to say that a 

building where you live or another building or this building, 

which would be fantastic for housing, detract from that in anyway. 

 The more people, obviously, the better, but I think you always 
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want to try to create this residential effect. 

  COMMISSIONER MITTEN:  I know during the DDD, for 

example, when there was a discussion of what side and where should 

the housing priority areas be, there had initially been a sense 

that maybe we just wanted one zone north of Massachusetts Avenue 

and one zone south of Massachusetts Avenue.  And, we ended up 

designating priority area C, specifically along the 7th Street 

corridor in the C-4 section because of the sense that there had 

already been the PADC investment in the housing in the south part 

of that and that there was a value to concentrating that housing 

and to requiring that housing be constructed there and not be able 

to be combined, lotted out of that area into the rest of B and 

lose the whatever -- if a critical mass would be generated if you 

required that, to stay within priority area C. 

  MR. ALTMAN:  I have just one final very brief 

point, is that I find myself arguing.  It's not arguing against 

housing at this site, which is what I was saying earlier with 

Professor Fuller's discussion.  Should housing not be there, we're 

arguing over use.  We're not arguing over use.  We complete 

support that and think that that's -- in fact, I think housing 

anywhere in downtown is absolutely a good thing.  I think your 

analysis shows it.  I think any building that wants to go to 

housing is by definition good for the District.  We need more 

people.  That is our goal   Our simple concern and we say this 

with very mixed feelings, obviously, which I'm not trying -- this 
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strange argument, is that we just were concerned about the policy 

that we might hurt a market that we've already been developing 

within these residential areas downtown.   

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  Mr. Altman, when you say 

you might hurt those areas, is this a competitive point?  Is your 

point that there is a limited demand for housing and, therefore, 

if it is satisfied at this site, it might not be satisfied in the 

areas where you want concentration.  Is that the point? 

  MR. ALTMAN:  No.  I'm sorry.  No, that's not the 

point.  The point was I don't think the housing competes against 

itself.  I think all the housing is complementary to -- I think 

all housing downtown, all housing is complementary.  The more 

people the better. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  I happen to agree with 

that.  That's why --  

  MR. ALTMAN:  I was talking about the TDR market 

itself.  That was the issue.  It's the mechanism, not the use.  

That's what I'm trying to distinguish, between the TDR market and 

I think what Ms. McCarthy pointed out was the amount of TDRs that 

have been generated within the housing priority areas.  The 

concern was simply that -- about any impact there might be on that 

market which could effect those projects or the housing priority 

area.  It's not a competitive situation between residential 

downtown and the use issue.  Absolutely not. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  Is this project, in your 
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view or in the view of OP, inconsistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan? 

  MS. McCARTHY:  No, I don't think it's inconsistent 

with the Comprehensive Plan.  I think the Comprehensive Plan 

provides clearer guidance and a stronger emphasis on creating a 

housing area in the Mount Vernon Square area and one in the Penn 

Quarter area and the other sections that we cited in our report 

initially, but, you know, as Mr. Sher pointed out, and as we said 

in our initial report, there is some general language that 

supports mixed uses any place in the downtown.  There is just far 

more specific language about this area.   

  And, you know, I should probably note all of our 

deliberations, all of our hours and hours of deliberations over 

this case have certainly lead us to say it is worth OP taking a 

second look at something that we've sort of wondered about off and 

on over the years, which was the conversion of class B and class C 

office building to some other use.  You know, we've seen it in New 

York and other places.  It happened to a substantial amount here. 

 Virtually all of the conversions that have occurred have been to 

hotels.  And, you know, I'm assuming we may be about to reach 

saturation on that market and there may be some natural 

inclinations to look as well both at some of the buildings that 

Anne identified in her slides earlier and some of -- some of those 

like the building that's next to -- that's along K Street in the 

1400 block, but has absolutely no redeeming historic value or any 
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aesthetic value as well, the name of which I can't remember, but 

it's that lovely parking garage and that grill work thing that's 

next to it. 

  MS. ADAMS:  The diamond windows. 

  MS. McCARTHY:  Yes.  But, you know, that's 

something that we ought to take a look at for the possibility of, 

you know, of including it in Comp Plan amendments the next time 

around and seeing whether there is something that we ought to be 

doing specifically to foster that, not just in historic buildings, 

but in all class B and class C office buildings, recognizing that 

there is also a need for low rent offices for non-profits and 

others that are getting squeezed right now, because of the office 

market in D.C. as well. 

  MR. ALTMAN:  Mr. Franklin, to answer your question, 

I don't believe housing in the downtown area is not inconsistent 

with the Comprehensive Plan.  It was more a matter of the policy 

that showed preference for areas than a Comp Plan and consistency 

issue at all. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  Does OP disagree with the 

testimony of Ms. Adams that the number of buildings that might 

take advantage of this text amendment is quite limited? 

  MS. McCARTHY:  Yes.  We even said that in our 

report initially, as well, that we thought practically speaking it 

was fairly limited.   

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  Now, if it's fairly 
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limited, why would it have this speculative destabilizing effect? 

  MS. McCARTHY:  I think it's basically the point 

that I was trying to make a little while ago, that it's not this 

amendment per se.  It's how do you then --  

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  The idea of a precedent. 

  MS. McCARTHY:  Right. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  Okay.   

  Could I turn to the applicant for a moment?  I 

presume you've done some kind of preliminary proforma on this 

project. 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  Yes, we have. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  What do you value the TDRs 

that you're proposing to be? 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  Well, I would like to respond to 

the question that -- the issue that Ms. Mitten raised and why we 

are so interested is that we have very different information about 

the value.  We have been speaking to a broker who does this as a 

living and their latest indications are they have to pending sales 

at $15.00 to $18.00 a square foot and they look ahead and they 

see, you know, potential demand, but they also see -- I mean, 

potential supply, but a great deal of potential demand as well.  

So, this is based on our discussions with our broker. 

  MR. EPTING:  Actually, Mr. Franklin, one of the 

brokers I talked to said he wouldn't be trying to sell these 

things unless he thought they were valuable.  And, he's a busy guy 
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and I took that to heart. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  Okay.  Would you have any 

problem if the provisions of this text amendment were limited to 

simply registered historic landmarks and not extended to 

contributing buildings in any historic district?  I take it the 

project involves a building that's a registered historic landmark? 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  That's right.  That's correct. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  So, would you have any 

problem if the text were limited in that fashion? 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  No, we wouldn't have a problem 

with that. 

  MR. EPTING:  I think, and if I can speak  a little 

broadly about that, I mean, I guess I wouldn't mind either because 

I would like to win this case, but specifically -- but, in looking 

at the contributing buildings, there are also not many of those 

either.  The majority of those are banks, as Anne pointed out. I 

would hate myself from a -- at least from a planning point of view 

to sort of pick and choose between the two.  I like the Bowen 

building, which is across the street from this building, which is 

only a contributing building.  And, I've always liked it and my 

heart's kind of set on that one being residential. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  I had forgotten there might 

be some other clients in town. 

  MR. EPTING:  I have to make my push. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  Okay.  Would you have any 
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problem if the vesting on the housing side were to not occur until 

there was a C of O? 

  MR. EPTING:  Can Steve address that first? 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  Whoever. 

  MR. SHER:  Well, on the scale of when, where and 

how much, obviously the interest of Summit is to get as many TDRs 

as they can vested as early in the process.  If you were to say to 

me, you don't get any or you can have them all at the end, we'll 

take them all at the end.   

  If there is a way that the Commission sees to find 

some middle ground on that, I mean, we've said we thought we could 

live with 50 percent at 50 percent completion and the rest at the 

end.  I want to just go back and the reason John asked me to do 

that is because he knows I'm sitting here with existing 

regulations that talk about when you are able to vest TDRs for a 

preferred use.  And, in fact, that's what we've asked for here, 

TDRs based on the combination of preservation and housing, but the 

formula becomes related to the number of square feet of housing, 

not the value of the preservation or the amount of lost density.   

  It's a preferred use TDR and if you look at the 

existing regulations, 1709.5(f), and I'm very fond of opening the 

book because I've made a habit of reading what's in here and 

knowing what it says.  And, what it says is if the project on the 

sending site generates TDRs from bonus uses of 15,000 square feet 

or more those TDRs vest in the receiving site and the person who 
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buys them without regard to what happens on the sending site, 

without regard to what happens on the UNW Building, after the 

applicant provides evidence of a lease agreement with a complying 

user/occupant of the bonus space. 

  Now, if I'm developing a department store -- it's a 

bad example, because no one has been able to find a department 

store that wants to go downtown.  If I'm developing an art gallery 

or a movie theater on the -- 555 12th Street, Lincoln Square, the 

one on the east side of 11th Street, between E and F on the block 

behind the John Wilkes Booth House.  They're putting movie 

theaters in there.  Preferred use under the arts sub area of the 

downtown development district.  Those TDRs vested when we came 

forward with a lease from a movie theater operator that said we're 

going to provide those theaters.  Leases can be broken, obviously, 

and all the rest of that, but it is a private sector -- I don't 

want to call it enforcement mechanism to provide some assurance to 

the government that party A is going to make party B perform under 

its end of the lease to provide that space. 

  MR. EPTING:  And, the space is not built. 

  MR. SHER:  It's not built.  It was under 

construction now.  We passed it on the way here.  It's about to 

the fourth floor or thereabouts.   

  Now, that's not realistic for a residential use.  

People are not going to lease an apartment house 18 months to 2 

years to 2� years in advance of knowing when they're going to 
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occupy it, for the most part.  Now, maybe there are a few, but 

most people want an apartment, they want it next month or the 

month after or maybe they can see six months in the future.  So, 

it's not realistic, I think, to say that that provision applies to 

the case of renting or selling residential units, whether these 

are condos or for rent apartment. 

  So, what we tried to do is figure out some other 

way of vesting some amount of TDRs and giving you three possible 

-- four possible alternatives about how that might work.  And, 

that's about where we are. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  I suppose if you're going 

to be building housing and putting all these bathrooms in and 

you're not finished with the project it's pretty clear that that's 

going to be housing, even before it's finished and even before 

people moved in. 

  MR. SHER:  I don't need to belabor that, yes. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  Yes.  Okay. 

  MS. McCARTHY:  All right.  But also those preferred 

use provisions with TDRs were drafted because you were talking 

about lease space that could be leased to a bank or could be 

leased to a movie theater and so the bonus itself came from the 

use.  That's why we were talking about certificate of occupancy 

because once you're issued a certificate of occupancy as a 

residential use, that's a pretty clear indication that you're a 

residential use. 
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  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  And, what your concern is 

that somehow ultimately the project built for residential use 

might be leased for office use? 

  MS. McCARTHY:  What our concern was, initially, was 

that there was a standard being established that was more liberal 

than that for a combined lot and transfers of developments rights 

in the DDD, but also that if you were only vesting it at building 

permit stage or at the point in time in which the plans were 

certified by the Historic Preservation Division, which was one of 

the original versions, then plans could be subsequently modified 

for other uses. 

  MR. SHER:  I need to just -- one thing.  We in no 

way, in no sense have ever suggested that this has anything to do 

with combined lot.  I mean I know that Office of Planning 

suggested they wanted to make that clear.  That's never been part 

of this proposal.  It's not in anything we've ever said, written 

or even thought about.  I mean, we're not there.  This is strictly 

a question of whether TDRs could be awarded to this project.  The 

issue of a C of O for the one lot versus the C of O on the other, 

it's not here.  That's not this deal.  This is a preferred use 

situation.  It's not the under-building on historic districts and 

all the rest of that and, I just wanted to make that clear before 

I cut my client off. 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  I would just like to say that 

we've been in the development process on this project for a about 
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a year and a half and to date we've probably spent roughly 

$10,000,000.00, both on the property and in the developing of our 

plans. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  You control the land? 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  Yes.  And, they are residential 

plans with bathrooms and when they're 50 percent complete, we will 

have spent a significant amount of money more and it will be very 

close to being a residential project. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  Can I infer from what 

you've said, in view of the money that's already been invested, 

that this project can go forward without the TDRs? 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  If we're not granted the TDRs we 

will have to revisit that issue with our investment committee.  

We've made the decision to go forward based on the commitment that 

we believe we had from the District for the TDRs. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  And, the commitment was 

from whom? 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  Well, from discussions and, you 

know, the tenor of the District and their support of housing. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  And, presumably 

preservation. 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  Correct. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  I have no further questions 

at the moment. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  I think, you know, if we don't 
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have all of our questions all at one time, we can always come back 

and go a second round. 

  COMMISSIONER HOLMAN:  Okay.  I guess this question 

is to the Office of Planning.  It seems like we're talking about, 

and I'm trying not to be facetious about this, but there was a 

golden age of TDRs where they had value, where they caused 

projects to be built and where they were relatively scarce and, 

therefore, able to do the -- incent the kinds of things that you 

want to incent.  And, I'm wondering when that period was and if we 

are, in fact, have such a glut why aren't we proposing to declare 

a moratorium or do something of that nature?   

  I'm just trying to understand the magnitude of the 

problem, because I've heard testimony that, you know, they do have 

value and that they are being used, and so I'm just trying to 

follow this.  It's like trying to understand gas prices; they go 

up and down, but I'm not really sure exactly that anybody has put 

their finger on what the culprit is and what the solution is.  So, 

it's a pretty open-ended question, but was there a time when that 

happened? 

  MS. McCARTHY:  I don't know if I would exactly 

characterize it as the golden age of TDRs.  There certainly was a 

period of, you know, from 1991 until 1998 when the two for one 

bonus for housing was passed.  When the DDD was originally 

designed, one of the major concerns had been making sure that when 

we down zoned historic properties to no more than 6 FAR, that 
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sufficient capacity was created in receiving zones where there was 

development activity in a reasonably expectable point in time to 

help compensate owners for the loss of that development envelop 

and then some few preferred uses, theaters and a few other uses 

that we really wanted to see downtown that we knew were real dogs 

in terms of economic development or in terms of economic return, 

that those also received TDRs. 

  When the Commission considered and eventually 

passed the two for one bonus for TDRs south of Massachusetts 

Avenue for housing and for the one for one north of Massachusetts 

Avenue, there was, in fact, testimony in opposition to that from 

some groups that were supportive of those preferred uses, saying 

two for one was probably too generous, housing had a greater 

potential economic return than got credited and that those TDRs 

would lose value for all of the preferred uses that they were 

being proposed.  But, the Commission went ahead and those have 

been attractive to some potential developers of housing.   

  I mean, one of the things that we have discussed in 

looking at this is, you know, should there be a moratorium.  I 

mean, you know there is the Helman case where, you know, the other 

aspects of other potential downsides of TDRs have been viewed.  

And, it's one of the reasons that we were thinking about time 

limitations or something else, because of the sense of, well, once 

the Commission has created an expectation to anybody that's 

thinking about doing a housing project or is in the process of 
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doing a housing project, what's going to be the impact if the 

Commission were to go back and say, "Wait a minute, maybe we were 

took generous.  We need to cut back on the level of incentives." 

  So, our thought was either not to expand them at 

all or to put some conditions, like the time limitation we were 

taking about or like a one for one, instead of a two for one so 

that we didn't further increase the supply.  And, so that it 

wasn't too difficult later, if we determined that it was too much, 

to go back and say, "Well, wait a minute, we said this was already 

going to be time limited and we said we were only going to 

authorize it for three years." 

  COMMISSIONER HOLMAN:  But, I guess following on to 

that question, I haven't heard -- maybe I missed it because of my 

little child care crises there, but I didn't hear any testimony 

that this amendment, in and of itself, was going to create or 

really greatly exacerbate the glut that you perceive. 

  MS. McCARTHY:  Right.  I'm not sure when your child 

care crises occurred, but what we basically said was this 

proposal, in and of itself, is not our concern.  It's this as a 

precedent for other expansion of TDRs. 

  COMMISSIONER HOLMAN:  So, are you saying that if we 

were to approve this, then others would perceive that the door is 

wide open for any changes in TDR?  What are we protecting against? 

 That's what you're concerned about? 

  MS. McCARTHY:  Well, we know there is specific 
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interest in expanding TDRs to preservation of churches throughout 

the city.  We know there are development projects underway in 

areas that are on the boundaries of DDD that we assume would be 

happy to come back and say, why are you incenting housing on this 

side of the line and not on our side of the line, you know, pretty 

much as what is before us today. 

  And, I guess that's where we started out on this 

project, because we said, you know, if there was specific language 

in the Comp Plan that said McPherson Square or 15th Street or 

something which specifically identified this area as a potential 

for conversion of offices into housing or as potential for the 

housing market, then the Commission would have a good handle on 

which to say later, yes, we expanded TDRs to there, but that was 

only because of this clear evidence in the Comp Plan about, you 

know, blah, blah, blah. 

  And, that absent it was not clear to us where you 

could turn for justification if you wanted to turn down somebody 

else who said let's make the size of the DDD bigger or let's, you 

know, let's provide incentives for housing when it's in the 14th 

Street arts district, because we're talking arts and housing, or 

whatever.  And, that was really our concern, was trying to provide 

something for you guys to hang your hat on, to be consistent, but 

to also protect the whatever, integrity or value the TDR market 

has now.  And, you know, it's really a difficult decision for us, 

I mean, we're preservationists.  We're housing advocates.  We want 
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to see these things.  We just want to do it in a way that doesn't 

violate, you know, UPC, understandable, predictable and 

competitive. 

  COMMISSIONER HOLMAN:  Okay.  Along those lines, 

would you agree with the statement that this proposed amendment is 

-- is or is not inconsistent with the Comprehensive Plan? 

  MS. McCARTHY:  You know, as Andy said earlier, we 

certainly would not say that it's inconsistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan.   

  COMMISSIONER HOLMAN:  Okay.  That's my last 

question.   

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  You, Ellen, in your report 

or reports, plural, us speak of a downtown housing task force.  

And, the downtown housing task force is apparently considering 

other incentives, many of which are beyond the Zoning Commission's 

authority.  Suppose those were in place.  It seems to me your 

argument tonight would not allow Summit to come forward for any of 

those incentives either, because your goal seems to be and I know 

why that is the case, we're going to build housing in the DD where 

we said we're going to build housing and anybody who wants to get 

benefits outside that area aren't going to get them.  I mean, 

that's what I hear you saying.   

  If you had tax abatements, exempt financing, 

incremental financing and all these other things, you would still 

insist that they not go outside these housing priority areas.   
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  MS. McCARTHY:  Well, actually that's not true.  The 

suggestion that tax abatement would be a good idea for housing was 

specifically generated by the downtown housing task force, which 

was looking only at the issue of downtown housing, but Jerry 

Whitticum from the Deputy Mayor's Office, Deputy Mayor for 

Planning and Economic Develop Office is here today.  When we then 

went to visit the Deputy Mayor's Office, they were suggesting to 

us that we look more broadly at the fact that when we can -- the 

District has such clear tax advantages from bringing in new 

working residents, that we ought to think more broadly about tax 

incentives for encouraging new housing development, whether or not 

it's within the housing priority areas or whether it's outside of 

that. 

  So, I don't think as an economic policy the Deputy 

Mayor's Office has at all determined that it should be limited to 

just that boundary, but that's still a policy in flux.   

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  But, you see my point is 

your sole argument tonight has to do with doing a predictable 

development of housing to get the critical mass and neighbor.  So, 

why would you support in the future, you know, tell Summit to wait 

about a year until we get some of these other provision in place? 

 Wouldn't you come forward and argue the same thing?  Wait a 

minute, this is delicate.  This is balance.  There is going to be 

a deluge if we start giving these incentives all over the city.  

We want to build housing here.  So, that's your argument tonight. 
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  MS. McCARTHY:  Well, before Andy speaks let me.   

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  Maybe Steve Sher could 

respond -- 

  MS. McCARTHY:  There is a difference between tax 

abatement, increment financing and other incentives and zoning in 

that increment financing or tax abatement don't have to be 

grounded in the Comprehensive Plan and in specific language in the 

Comprehensive Plan, which zoning incentives do.  So, that was 

where we initially came from.  And, you were going to add. 

  MR. ALTMAN:  I was going to say two points.  One is 

that -- and I actually concur with Mr. Sher on this and his 

report.  I believe it's his report, which is we are not asking nor 

would we ever say to the Commission don't consider or zoning this 

issue because of the possibility that there might be a tax 

incentive or something else that will come along for them.  I 

don't think that would be fair to them.  I don't think -- that's 

not what we're saying.  And, I just want to clarify that.   

  I know you weren't asking this, but in the report 

where it did discuss a tax abatement or tax increment financing 

and various other measures, I just for the record don't want to 

imply in anyway that we're asking you to even factor that into 

your consideration.  We put that there because of the overall 

package of things we like to think about for housing, but it is 

not relevant to this case. 

  Now, to the point more directly, the difference is 
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that in this instance you have a system you've already built up.  

In other words, it's not saying that -- your question is that the 

policy call is one of clustering or dispersion.  Okay.  And, what 

we're asking you to do is only support clustering and not 

dispersion.   

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  Okay. 

  MR. ALTMAN:  What we're saying is that the TDR 

market which we've set up, in order to promote clustering, to have 

that effect, which has been in place and which is the various 

numbers that have been presented, are concerned with simply the 

sensitivity to not hurting that market to help the clustering 

effect which it was set up to do.  So, it's a system that has been 

set up over time.   

  As you're establishing a new system, such as a tax 

abatement, you have a whole different ball game and you set up the 

new rules of the game.  It more had to do with, I think, the 

consistency of interpretation of a policy framework that has been 

built up over time, very explicitly to achieve a goal.  But, it is 

not again an either or on that. 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  Well, I guess I got to beat 

this to death a little bit, because it would seem to me as you 

moved forward with these other incentives, that until you get 

5,000 units or whatever the goal is, north of Massachusetts and 

south of Massachusetts you wouldn't apply these incentives 

anywhere else in the city.  That's my point.  Why would you do 
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that until you had the community that we've all hoped for? 

  MS. McCARTHY:  Go ahead. 

  MR. ALTMAN:  Just to continue to beat this to 

death.  As I said earlier, to Carol Mitten's point, which is you 

want as much housing as you can possibly get downtown.  There is 

no question about that.  And, you want it both in neighborhoods 

and as buildings come up.  It's terrific to have it.  I don't want 

to do anything that would discourage that in anyway. 

  The question that we looked at was given the TDR we 

simply looked at what the right mechanism is to support the 

housing in the different areas.  In this case, because we felt 

that through the tax, whether that was, as I said earlier, land 

right down through PADC, the combination of benefits that may have 

made these areas now viable as residential we were concerned about 

disrupting that since it had been built up over time.   

  So, if someone, for example, had been banking on 

that.  Let's say hypothetically you're square 457 and this isn't 

in anyway based on conversations with them, but since we're 

speculating and the came in and said the city's policy -- they had 

been encouraged to come in because of a land right down.  They had 

been encouraged to come in because they can sell TDRs.  They're 

going to do historic preservation.  They're going to do 400 units 

of housing.  They've come in with a certain -- they're looking at 

sort of a predictability of a market where they think they may 

have value.  
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  Our concern was simply doing anything that might 

disrupt that certainty of that market.  That's not to say now we 

wouldn't put in another benefit for the other areas of downtown, 

but again, I wouldn't make that decision based on the other 

benefit.  I just simply pointed out that it is not inconsistent to 

have both goals.  It's the question of the tool. 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  Okay.  I think it's finally 

dead. 

  MS. McCARTHY:  But, Mr. Parsons, since he did 

mention --  

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  No, no.  It is dead.  You 

can't beat it anymore.   

  MS. McCARTHY:  I know, I can't.  I can't and so 

what I was just going to use that was a not so graceful seque into 

saying that I appreciate the fact that you reminded me about the 

downtown housing task force and that I wanted to remind you that 

at the last portion of our report we had transmitted to the 

Commission the suggestions with regard to zoning that the downtown 

housing task force had made and said if those were of interest to 

the Commission and you wanted to ask us to write a set down report 

on those,t hat was something that we wanted to run by you and see 

if that was something that the Commission wanted us to go further 

with. 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  All right.  Thank you.  I'll 

return to you.  We've been presented and I hope you have a copy of 
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some alternative scenarios tonight.  I since from a question you 

answered earlier and until you revisit your development team or 

board of directors or whatever it is you -- you may not be in a 

position to respond to this, but there seems to me some logic, at 

least from a planning standpoint, if we're to proceed with this, 

that the use of the north of Massachusetts Avenue formula, which 

will cut your TDRs almost in half, make some sense to me.  

  So, are you knowledgeable enough of your board's 

thinking as to whether this even makes sense? 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  I'd like to make -- 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  As alternative  

to -- 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  I would like to make one 

statement in response to these alternatives and that is that by 

focusing -- merely allowing the TDRs merely for the historic 

portion of the project it ignores a very, very important factor 

and that is that the effect of developing a site with a historic 

building on it is that the rest of the site is naturally effected 

by that.  It's constrained in a very big way and this project is 

an excellent example of that. 

  Because we're preserving the entire building, we 

are not able to build a garage underneath the building.  

Therefore, we're limited to the very small site immediately 

adjacent to that building, which is not large enough for a 

traditional garage.  Consequently, we have to go to a very unusual 
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innovative system that is very expensive.  Now, that is 

technically on the new construction side, but it is because of the 

existing building and there are many, many other examples.  These 

buildings, the new and the old, will not line up exactly, because 

the ceiling heights of the old building are much higher.  That's a 

very significant design obstacle that we've had to overcome.   

  So, it sound logical to just focus on the, you 

know, the new construction and treat it as new construction some 

place where there is a vacant site,  but really you had to look at 

this as the overall project and each is effected. 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  All right. 

  MR. EPTING:  If I can -- can I add two more points, 

Mr. Parsons?  I mean, first we are south of Massachusetts and we 

are C-4 zoned land.  Secondly, in addition to what Ms. Ford was 

saying, I see it actually -- OP talks about this being more 

generous of than what they have south of Massachusetts and I see 

it being less, estimate about two to one.  But, that ignores that 

south of Massachusetts and DD you can do a project with no 

historic preservation and or facade and get two to one just for 

the housing. 

  Our requirements for two to one are that we do 

whole building preservation and the housing so that it is that 

combination of the two that gets us back to the two to one.  And, 

that's why we thought one it wasn't more of an incentive than 

south of Massachusetts DD.  It's actually less, I think.  And, its 
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not -- I'm line comparable to north of Massachusetts, because it's 

not C-4. 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  The bar is actually higher 

outside the DD, because you cannot get the TDRs just for 

residential, but rather you must have residential, C-4, historic, 

historic with demolition. 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  Those are very persuasive 

arguments, but the answer is whether you could take a 100 or 

73,000 square foot hit is something that you're not prepared to 

answer tonight. 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  You're speaking to alternative 

line? 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  I'm speaking to -- as I 

understand it you have 200,000 TDRs generated from the current 

project. 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  Yes. 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  It's being suggested at one 

to one you would have 117.  Now, I don't know if al those figures 

are correct or not, but that was my point.   

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  Actually at one to one we would 

have even less than that.  

  PARTICIPANT:  No, he's giving you credits -- he's 

giving you credits for -- 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  Oh, okay.  Right.  Okay.  I see. 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  I guess I'm sensing that 
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you're not able to answer the question, so I'll just stop. 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  Well, I mean, I would echo what 

Steve said.  I mean, obviously, you know, we prefer to have one 

and three-quarters, you know, to none, but actually the 

differential between our project and a non-C-4, non-historic 

project is significantly the cost -- 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  I understand.  I understand. 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:   -- would not be written off if 

we went this route. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Finished?  I just have a few 

questions that are probably going to go back and forth. 

  Ms. Ford, if the text amendment was approved, what 

would the going rate be for a condominium apartment? 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  They are apartments.  They are 

rental apartments. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay. 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  And, they would range from 

roughly $1,000.00 per month for the smallest to about $2,500.00 

for the largest. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Is there going to be an 

additional fee associated with that like a condominium fee or -- 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  No, sir, there would be no 

condominium fee. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  So, it would be a flat rate of 

$1,000.00? 
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  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  Right.  There will be additional 

fees for parking in our garage. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  And, with this $1,000.00 will it 

include utilities and -- 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  No.  It would not include 

utilities. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  To the Office of Planning, when 

I was reading your report I note this is not within the DD.  Now, 

I think we've made that perfectly clear.  And, when I read it and 

I saw where there wouldn't be any -- if it doesn't jump start then 

our -- you mentioned goods and services and I've forgot exactly 

where it is in your report, but my question is it immediately 

brought to me in mind of Ward 8, even though I know we're talking 

about a different circumstance and a different situation. 

  But, there is a neighborhood, a residential 

neighborhood that doesn't even have, at this particular time and I 

know it's on the maps, a grocery store.  So, wouldn't it at some 

point in time --  guess my question is at some point in time don't 

you have to start somewhere?  And, I understand about the DD and 

all that.  I understand that.  Since I've been here I've heard 

housing downtown, housing downtown, housing downtown.  And, I also 

understand some of the drawbacks.  That was my question at the 

last hearing. 

  But, I guess my concern is we have to start 

somewhere.  In the two years I've been here I haven't seen 
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anything come down like this and now all of a sudden I'm getting 

the reverse side of what I've been hearing for two years.  So, I 

guess back to my original question, don't we have to start 

somewhere? 

  MS. McCARTHY:  I think we certainly indicated that 

getting housing on this site would be a plus for the District.  

And, getting housing in some of the other obsolete office 

buildings in this vicinity and in others would be a plus for the 

District. 

  One thing that is hard to convey because they're 

not in the ground yet though is the C change that's happened with 

regard to the perception of market -- the market for housing in 

the District.  We are, you know, first of all I think it's been 

fairly widely reported in the paper that projects like the East 

Bank project, Millennium Project at 22nd and M and the project in 

the incinerator site in Georgetown, who of us would have guessed 

that the incinerator could be a home for luxury housing at the 

$1,000.00 a foot levels -- square foot level for condos, or the 

$700.00 and above at 22nd and M at Blackie's parking lot. 

  But, those kinds of widely publicized numbers have 

sparked incredible amounts of both conversion of derelict 

buildings in Shaw, in the Logan Circle area and even south of 

Massachusetts Avenue.  I mean, we just had a meeting today with 

the developer who is talking about housing at 5th and 

Massachusetts.  We've had other developers and property owners in 
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looking at housing throughout the DDD area and on the fringe of 

that, in ways that are just amazing considering a few years ago 

being told that housing had a negative value as a development.  

So, I think, yes, starting anywhere is a good idea, but what you 

will be seeing soon are housing starts all over the downtown area 

and outside the downtown in many other places in the city as well. 

 I mean, I think we're seeing that already in many places in the 

city and I think we'll be seeing it in the downtown as well, both 

within the DDD and outside the DDD. 

  I mean, you know, at the BZA, just a few months 

ago, the BZA approved a variance for housing at National City, 

just behind National City Christian Church, on the other side of 

Thomas Circle and, you know, that's one of the projects, in fact, 

that we had in mind at one point when we were saying, well, what 

is that developer going to say if they come back and say, gee, 

there was, you know, housing that's just a few blocks outside of 

the DDD on the other side is getting TDRs, but we're not getting 

TDRs.  So, maybe we shouldn't have just asked for a variance.  

Maybe we should have asked for TDRs.  It's just hard to figure out 

where to draw the line.  

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  I understand trying to 

make sure we have some control and I also understand -- I think 

you referred to it as the UPC, Ms. McCarthy. 

  MS. McCARTHY:  Yes. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Understandable part of it, the 
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predictable part of it I agree with it, but the competitive part 

is where I'm starting to -- is where I have a little problem.  To 

continue to try to get development, I understand the argument 

outside of the DD and let's get some control.  But, I believe they 

can do office regardless of what we do.  Am I correct?  They can 

do office regardless of whether we approve this text or not.  They 

can still go ahead with office.  So, then on the other hand we 

would miss out on the housing, which we've been pushing for. 

  Just bear with me, I have quite a few questions, 

but they're scattered.  There has been a lot of speculation going 

on.   

  Also, Office of Planning, I want to bring something 

to your attention.  You all had mentioned that you would do a sit 

down of the downtown housing task force new zoning text.  While I 

think that we would appreciate you all providing us with that, we 

also would like to see -- I think we had said something awhile 

back, the TDRs, the receiving zone, New Jersey Avenue, if we can 

work on both of those at the same time or similar.  I think that 

we would appreciate that.  That may have helped us out with some 

of these receiving zone. 

  MS. McCARTHY:  Yes.  We are working on that as 

well.  We have a meeting with the Deputy Mayor's Office on Friday. 

 We have a meeting with Mr. Helman scheduled for next Wednesday. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  I think I will -- that's 

all I need to do right now.  Any other questions, colleagues, 
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second round? 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  Just one, Mr. Chairman. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  sure. 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  I'm trying to pose this 

question maybe to Mr. Altman or Ms. McCarthy, just to sum up at 

least where I am as a result of our dialogue. 

  Would OP agree that its position is that this is a 

terrific project, highly desirable from a housing and preservation 

standpoint, that the text amendment that we're considering will 

have very limited impact and, in fact, might even more limited if 

we change the applicability, that it is consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan, that this housing will not compete with 

housing in the DD and might even generate more interest in the 

housing in the DD, that notwithstanding the speculation of a glut, 

the applicant says that TDRs here are worth, what is it, $18.00 to 

$20.00. 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  $15.00 to $18.00 currently. 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  Excuse me,  

$18.00 -- 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  $15.00 to $18.00 currently. 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  $15.00 to $18.00.  $15.00 to 

$18.00, okay.  And, that what it all boils down to is a concern 

that, you know, if we adopt this text amendment it will set a 

precedent, because this Commission will not be able to draw a line 

at this point and will be on a slippery slope going off on a spree 
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to create more TDRs. 

  It reminds me of the argument that somebody once 

made against the income tax in the Supreme Court.  I can't 

remember who it was, but said the power to tax is the power to 

destroy and Justice Holmes said, not while this Court sits.  So, 

at least with the four intelligent colleagues to my right, I don't 

think the Commission is on a slippery slope in this area.  Is that 

really what this all boils down to? 

  MS. McCARTHY:  You know, I don't think I would have 

given quite the same answer about competition of housing, because 

I don't think we are -- we quite know how deep the market is for 

housing in the downtown and I guess I would be thinking more along 

the lines where I think Mr. Parsons was going, that with a goal 

established clearly in a Comprehensive Plan of 5,400 units south 

of Massachusetts Avenue in the DD area, anything which potentially 

dilutes that market, I think, is not a good idea and that it's 

best to focus it where it's likely to create a critical mass of 

housing. 

  But, other than that, I don't -- I'm not talking 

about you all being lead to a slippery slope.  I'm talking about 

you having a justification within the Comprehensive Plan for 

denying somebody else who presents a very similar set of facts and 

comes back and says, what the basis legally to deny me, when 

you've already extended this incentive in a very similar position. 

 That's really all I know. 
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  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  Well, as you I'm sure 

appreciate, we're in a rule making procedure and our rule making 

doesn't necessary set a precedent for other rule making any more 

than the Congress feels bound to do something one year that it has 

done the previous year.   

  MR. ALTMAN:  I think the question, I would frame it 

differently.  Not different than Ellen, different than the way you 

posed this.  The issue isn't precedent with respect to the likely 

or anticipated behavior of the Commission, the question for how 

you might rule later or how you might say yes or no to a 

subsequent project.  The question was one of is that there had 

been a policy issue that we tried to raise here, that the 

Commission take very seriously in its deliberation about this.  

Which is why we, frankly, invested the effort in doing a very 

thorough report about the TDRs and about the policy bases. 

  The question is that there has been in the downtown 

plan and the planning efforts and you see it reflected in the 

zoning regulations, something that was called a housing priority 

area and something that said there was a benefit to create a 

downtown clustering of neighborhoods.  That wasn't to say that 

downtown housing elsewhere isn't a desirable impact, but that over 

time there has been a policy framework that's been deliberated, 

discussed, debated and it was there, frankly, for a reason.   

  So, if you're coming in new, as I come in new, and 

read that history and say that the city has very deliberately 
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established this policy framework.  And, it says that there is a 

housing priority A, a housing priority B and a housing priority C. 

 And, it has laid out a series of incentives within those areas, 

whether that's the bonus system, the TDR system, but it set up a 

fairly elaborate regulatory incentive and regulatory structure in 

order to effectuate a policy based on these housing priority areas 

and based on clustering. 

  Our point in this discussion was to just point out 

to the Commission and to say that one needs to look at that 

seriously, evaluate that and make a determination as to whether it 

is not with respect to necessarily is it a trust the Commission or 

not, it's that we've had this.  That's the precedental issue in my 

mind, was more the one of the policy framework that's been built 

up and the impact on that.  You can argue right or left, I agree, 

about the impact on it.  Is it significant?  Is it not in terms of 

TDRs, the number of buildings, and clearly we haven't said that 

this is going to be the flood gate of -- we don't know.  We just 

don't know and we could speculate one way or the other. 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  Well, I wasn't entirely 

serious when I made that analogy, but it seems to me that what 

we're talking about is really kind of tweaking the basic policy.  

It's not as though we're talking about a really wholesale 

departure from the policy.  So, that's what I meant when I said 

everyone agreed that this would have very limited impact.   

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Well, let me, if I could, just 
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piggyback on Commissioner Franklin.  That's where I was -- I'm 

inclined in thinking and I'm not saying whether I approve it or 

not, but I'm just saying that things have moved so slow for so 

long that it looks like when somebody puts something on the table 

the Downtown Housing Now and those groups jumped at it and said, 

hey, look, this is some relief.  And, that's the way I viewed it 

from reading the material and hearing the discussion. 

  So, any other comments? 

  MR. BASTIDA:  Mr. Chairman, staff would like to 

bring to the attention of the Commission that if the Commission 

would like -- would decide to approve some segment of this rule 

making, this is published in the register requesting comments from 

the community at large to receive that input.  And, that's part of 

the rule making.  So, you would have those comments on hand prior 

to the final decision that the Commission would make. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  Thank you.  

Commissioners, if we could, I think we have some other people that 

want to say a few words and I think it would be advantageous for 

us to be able to hear a response from others.  So, what I would 

like to do at this time and if we have any questions we can come 

back on the back end.  We will allow you some time to close out 

both sides.   

  First, before anyone moves, do we have anyone from 

any ANCs in the city that would like to cross examine either the 

Office of Planning or applicant?  Well, let me ask, do we have any 
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ANCs? 

  All right.  Next, do we have a report of any other 

agencies?  Report or advice of neighborhood commissions?  Persons 

in support?  How many people do we have in support, a show of 

hands?  Okay.  If you both would like to come and take the table 

at the same time, if you don't mind.   

  Okay.  You may begin, if you'll introduce yourself. 

 Mr. Docter. 

  MR. CHARLES DOCTER:  On behalf of Downtown Housing 

Now and also I want to talk for a minute as a member of the task 

force on housing.  I want to make it very clear that the task 

force was asked about this particular proposal and all of the 

housing activists on the task force wanted to affirm and support 

the proposal that's before you.  The developers on the task force 

specifically said that they did not want to get involved in 

anyone's particular zoning case and therefore no position has been 

taken by the task force. 

  I think, however, I'm a little surprised at the 

Office of Planning in moving this set down report or suggesting 

that the set down report should be before you, because the task 

force hasn't issued its report yet and, in fact, we are waiting.  

As I understand, the only thing that's holding us is we're waiting 

for the administration to tell us what their position is on the 

various incentives that are in the task force report, which is an 

endemic problem in this entire field.  And, therefore, I find it a 
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little bit disconcerting to see that we're moving a part of the 

report forward without even having a position taken by the 

administration on the incentives.  And, I think that's one of the 

reasons I'm down here in regards now.  I'm not talking anymore as 

the task force, which I have no right to talk on behalf of the 

task force, but I'm just talking as Downtown Housing Now. 

  One of the reasons I can't understand the 

opposition that has been generated is this is the only incentive 

that's around and it doesn't cost the public any money.  So, in 

any event, we, as Downtown Housing certainly support the proposal 

that has been made by the Summit Properties. 

  The one thing that the slide showed, that Ms. Adams 

showed, is really an eye opener, because if there is a problem in 

scattered site housing in the downtown and I don't happen to 

believe there is such a problem, but if there is what's very 

interesting is that most of the buildings that had the high 

potential for rehabilitation into housing were in the neighborhood 

of the UMW building.  There is a lot of those office buildings 

along 15th Street there that might lend themselves to his.  So, if 

anything, this might be an ideal site to start the development on. 

  The only other thing we want to say is that Mr. 

Fuller is certainly -- Dr. Fuller has given a very good 

presentation on the revenue side and we're very happy about 

bringing that out finally.  I would also like to say that the kind 

of people that have been attracted to the downtown housing so far 
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at least have not been families.  They have been empty nesters.  

So, on the expense side, the downtown housing doesn't produce a 

lot of expense for the city, because we don't send children to 

school.  So, I think from that point of view there is a plus for 

the city also in getting more housing downtown.   

  I just hope for -- you seem form your questions to 

fully understand the issue and I don't want to belabor anything or 

beat a dead horse anymore, but any event I hope you'll support the 

application and you may want to put some limitations on it that 

you talked about, but that's it.  Thank you. 

  MR. McDANIEL:  I am Dale McDaniel.  I'm an 

administrative assistant with Luther Place Memorial Church and I'm 

president of the Board of Directors of N Street Village, which is 

a not for profit organization affiliated with Luther Place Church. 

 And, with me is Henry Bauden, who is president of Bauden Realty, 

also a member of Luther Place Church and vice president of the N 

Street Board of Directors.  And, he's also chairman of the 

building committee for renovation of the church proper, which I'll 

touch on in just a moment. 

  And, we would like to support the Summit property 

proposal.  We're also a member of the downtown cluster of 

congregations, which is on record as being in support of the 

Summit property proposal.  We believe that the addition of housing 

downtown is a good thing for the city generally and we believe 

that preservation of historic buildings are a good thing generally 
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and that the amendment which they have offered is an appropriate 

limited amendment to the regulations which are already on the 

books. 

  We're located at Thomas Circle which is just 

outside the downtown development district and just north of 

McPherson Square.  The structure was built in 1873.  It's a 

Gothic, sandstone structure, which over the years has accumulated 

a lot of usage and is now facing repairs which amount to about 3.6 

million dollars.  It's a designated historic landmark and as Ellen 

suggested earlier, we are suggesting to the Commission, it's not 

often one gets a chance to talk about TDRs, but since we have this 

audience, we're calling to your attention that a recent amendment 

to the comprehensive plan for the district allows historic 

congregations, synagogues and other places of worship outside of 

the Downtown Development District, who are contributing buildings 

in historic district outside of the Downtown Development District 

be allowed to transfer TDRs for the purposes of renovating and 

maintaining the building, primarily, although if funds are not 

necessarily for that purpose, for other purposes of the 

institution.  

  We now facing those are asking that the Commission 

consider implementing the regulations which would be necessary to 

allow that to occur and we furnished you with a draft set of 

regulations, also to the Office of Planning, which would permit 

the sale of those TDRs.  Our congregation is approximately 300 
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members and we expect to raise from that membership a sizeable 

amount of the 3.6 million, but not the entire 3.6 million dollars. 

 And, the ability to sell TDRs, we believe, could make a 

substantial difference in our ability to maintain the historic 

structure. 

  Our suggestion is for the implementing regulations, 

that those be limited only to designated historic structures, at 

least for the first phase and that we be permitted to transfer up 

to 100 percent of the commercial unused TDRs and up to 90 percent 

of the non-commercial unused TDRs.  We'll talk about the details 

of those as that proposal might be acted on by the Commission, but 

we just wanted to call that generally to your attention.   

  With respect to housing, we operating in an 

affordable housing building which we erected in 1996, just north 

of the church, at Thomas Circle.  It also provides a continuum of 

services for homeless women, from homelessness to independence.  

As we went through that process, putting up the new structure, 

which cost about $15,000,000.00, we had two appeals before the 

Board of Zoning Adjustments and I would simply note that the 

fragility of the financing associated with that was very much in 

jeopardy, because the project was delayed for approximately two 

years and the cost driven up by something over $2,000,000.00 as a 

result of that process.   

  So, we're very sympathetic to the Summit property 

situation, where you are faced with an uncertain financial 
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situation, which is prolonged over a period of time, which really 

jeopardizes the project. 

  In the final analysis we were able to go ahead and 

complete that, but it's still very close marginally with regard to 

the operation.  So, we urge the Zoning Commission to consider the 

Summit proposal favorably.  And, I think Mr. Bauden would like to 

add some details on this proposal itself. 

  MR. BAUDEN:  My name is Henry Bauden.  I'm a 

resident of D.C., also a business -- my business is located here 

in D.C.  I've been practicing in real estate development since 

1972, primarily in office space, but I have been associated with 

two housing projects in downtown Washington, and also two 

different historic projects in downtown Washington. 

  One of the things as we listened here tonight, 

there is a lot of talk about sort of the marketability of TDRs and 

the supply and demand and I think we really focused on the supply 

and not the demand.  And, I think if you look at the history of 

them market, it's really been a demand problem, not a supply 

problem.  And, you know, these things are not sold in Walmart and 

they're not gasoline and they are very distinct and these deals 

are made in a very distinct manner. 

  And, I would suggest to you that one of the 

problems with making these TDR deals has been from the demand side 

and from the buyer's side are vesting, lenders' perceptions about 

how that vesting works and do you have it or do you not have it.  
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And, one thing that I've not quite ever understood is that I think 

that some of the vesting issues should be looked at in terms of 

having covenants run with the title of the land, as opposed to 

thinking about occupancy permits and those kinds of things, which 

will make it much more certain.  And, these deals that are made 

between buyer and seller are really made on the basis of the 

buyers' economics and the certainty thereof.  I've been involved 

in one which was transfer of development rights at 1215 Eye 

Street, where we bought and paid for housing through Jubilee 

Housing, but that deal was a very specific deal.  How we got the 

vesting rights was very specific.  We negotiated our deal with 

Jubilee Housing and, you know, it really wasn't in contract to 

what the market was.  It was in contrast to what our economics 

were and what made sense for us and what made sense for the 

seller. 

  And, I'll submit to you that in a market today for 

office space, people can argue about this, but I think generally 

people would say that the FAR price is $45.00 to $95.00 a foot.  

Maybe some people would argue a little more and some people a 

little less, but that's sort of where we are in the market.  And, 

we're talking about -- we're sitting here debating about whether 

we would buy these things for $7.00 or $15.00 a foot.  And, i 

would submit to you that there is a lot of room in the market 

place to buy these, but it's just -- it's really facilitating the 

deal making process of that, not what the price is, that really 
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has been the impediment.  And, if you look at it, I don't know 

what the numbers are and I'm sure OP would know more about this 

and Wilkes and Artis, but my recollection is we're probably 

talking about 10 to 15 deals that have been made with regard to 

TDRs since they were really -- the legislation was put on the 

books. 

  So, I think it's the demand side and how we 

facilitate the marketability and the liquidity of the TDRs, as 

opposed to how many we're offering up.  And, then it's up to these 

buyers and sellers to get together and sort of make their deals 

and, as I said, that's really what happens.  I mean, it's not like 

you go to the Walmart and say, well, I want to buy, you know, 

10,000 TDRs.  People all, you know, are saying well, I may have 

these, I may not and then you go to somebody and say, well, I may 

have some, I would like to sell them to you, but I don't really 

know if I have them yet, but, you know, I want to sell them to 

you. 

  And, it becomes very difficult to market these.  

And, I think the other thing is that we have seen in D.C. is that 

we're dealing with a limited land area and we went through some 

down times in terms of our market, both housing wise and office 

wise.  We used to talk about when we were going to run out of land 

and that sort of got stretched out because of the down turn in the 

market.  But, the fact is that we are dealing with a limited 

market and the TDRs really are a way to expand our land market 
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through that.  So, I think there is a lot of potential to market 

these TDRs, not only for Summit, but for Luther Place and other 

people similar to us. 

  And, I think that while -- the other thing I would 

say is that we've talking about housing production and how great 

the market is right now.  And, it is pretty good, especially in 

terms of recent history.  However, I would submit to you that I 

mean, it's not overwhelming.  I mean, it's not like there is a 

glut of housing in any -- either at the lower end or the higher 

end and so that anything that we can do to encourage housing I 

think is a good thing for the District of Columbia.  My notes are 

kind of running all over there, too, Mr. Hood. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  I know how you feel. 

  MR. BAUDEN:  But, I think that really concludes my 

remarks.  But, I do think it's not a supply problem.  It's a 

demand problem.  It a marketability problem as it relates to 

lenders and how we really clarify and quantify the transfer of 

these things and I think the system, if anything could be done, 

it's sort of the vesting rights could be shorn up and if it could 

be with covenants running with land, I think it would be much 

better than relying on occupancy permits or things like that.  

Because it would create a certainty and with certainty it makes 

deals. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  Thank you.  

Commissioners, do we have any questions for either one?  
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  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  No question. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  No. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  Next, persons in opposition. 

  MR. BASTIDA:  I see none. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  See none.  Moving right along.  

If the applicant wants to come back.  I will say this.  I see four 

people have taken the table.  We will condense the final remarks 

to maybe about 5 minutes.  I also want to allow Office of Planning 

5 minutes if they want to say some closing remarks. 

  PARTICIPANT:  You might want to ask Ellen if she 

wants --  

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Well, while Mr. Altman is 

getting permission we will start with the applicant. 

  MR. EPTING:  Thank you, Mr. Hood, and I appreciate 

this opportunity.  Well, we do believe this text amendment is very 

important for the city and very important for housing now matter 

how you describe the downtown.  In terms of this opening of the 

door to the Zoning Commission, any project like this, any text 

amendment has to be non-inconsistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 I think Steve Sher has testified tonight that this project, this 

text amendment is non-inconsistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  

OP, I think, agrees with that position.   

  That's your threshold determination whether you're 

opening a door or not.  I believe we are consistent.  This is a 
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good idea.  We've tried to be narrow in scope and I think we're 

right there in the ballpark.  I do like the concept of tweaking, 

because that is essentially what we were trying to do.  We don't 

believe there are any adverse impacts to this.  It's clear, I 

think, that we disagree with OP about TDRs and the market and the 

supply.  But, one thing that we put in our report is that we do 

believe the long term demand in the three receiving zones, which 

were not established until 1998 is strong.  We liken that to the 

development of the west end, which took -- the plan was done in 

'74.  The first development started in '76 and now 24 years later 

you see some of the things that Ellen was talking about in the 

west end with the Millennium Project. 

  We see similar types of things in these receiving 

zones.  This is going to take longer than two years.  I also 

believe that a critical mass is probably important and I think 

Charlie stole my thunder and said, but you've got to start 

somewhere.  But, we also believe that any residential house and we 

believe this was acknowledged by the Zoning Commission, in DD will 

allow TDRs for residential development not just in the housing 

priority areas, but throughout DD.  So, I think OP and the Zoning 

Commission have already made that leap. 

  We cannot really believe that the Office of 

Planning believes that residential west of 15th Street doesn't 

really substantially contribute to the CBD in the downtown.  You 

know, as a development lawyer when OP talks about predictability 
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and it's hard for me to understand that statement, I think of 

predictability in terms of having a requirement of down zoning 

imposed on me and that being the concern about predictability.  

It's not by adding incentives.  I think developers and others like 

having incentives, looked at tweak worked on.   

  We talked briefly why we thought the two to one TDR 

was important and I'm not going to go over that again and I think 

with that why don't I let Ms. Ford say a few brief things and Andy 

has a pitch for the buildings beside the landmarks. 

  MRS. SMITH-FORD:  I would just like to say that we 

acknowledge that we are not technically in the priority area in 

DD, but we firmly believe that we will help all of those housing 

projects coming on line in the DD and vice versa, that they will 

help us.  We believe that by making the downtown more residential. 

 And, we also believe that we need as many people as possible in 

the downtown to help the new retail coming on line.  Just a few 

blocks down the street Barnes and Noble and Borders have announced 

they will be very near our project and they're intending to stay 

open until 11:00 p.m. at night and they're going to need our 

people, as well as all the projects planned in DD as well. 

  I would also like to says that we believe that our 

pioneering effort here in McPherson Square will encourage others 

and that there could ultimately result in a concentration of 

housing there as well, and that it is very important to remember 

maybe something that we may not have focused on enough this 
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evening and that is the extremely low vacancy rates now in the 

District.  Currently the vacancy rates are unprecedently low.  

They are lower than they've been since World War II.  And, it 

appears to me that the District is not quite where they want to be 

in terms of housing and so I'm hoping that the Commission will 

take the broader view, not the technical view, but the broader 

view of the housing and the overall downtown and encourage housing 

until we get where the District wants to be. 

  MR. EPTING:  Go ahead. 

  MS. ADAMS:  Mr. Docter's observation about the 

potential clustering or the clustering of buildings that might be 

likely candidates for housing rehab that I showed today was 

interesting, because while the Champlain Apartments is a landmark, 

the Bowen Building, for example, the Woodward Building, are 

contributing buildings in the District and I would like to make a 

pitch for contributing buildings, because those are the buildings 

that make our historic districts.  They make up the fabric of what 

is significant about the 15th Street historic district. 

  They are under the same pressures from the C-4 

zoning that the landmarks are.  And, what's different to me about 

this proposed amendment from all the other things that people have 

been talking about tonight, what's north of Massachusetts Avenue 

or what's in the DD, is that we have three things going on.  We 

have C-4 zoning, which puts the highest pressure on these 

properties, the requirement for whole building retention and for 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 108

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

TDRs for preservation downtown or in the DD you don't have to do 

that.  You can do a facade project.  So, this is a substantial 

increase of -- it increases the requirements to be able to get 

this benefit and I think that benefit is significant and there is 

the housing benefit. 

  So, it's a combination of things.  It's three 

things that fit together to make this targeted to what I think are 

the things that need it most and if someone else wants to come in 

with proposals for other TDRs and I happen to think TDRs for 

preservation are a perfectly good thing, but the Commission can 

evaluate those on a case by case basis.  The convergence of things 

in this amendment I think really makes this different and special 

and targeted and needed. 

  MR. EPTING:  So, in conclusion we're asking you for 

your support.  We have no opposition other than the concerns 

expressed from OP.  We have substantial support from the housing 

advocates and, again, I would like to renew my plea for a bench 

decision, if we can, tonight.  And, thank you very much. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  Thank you.  Office of 

Planning, do you want to say a final word? 

  MR. ALTMAN:  Yes, I've conferred and I will -- I'm 

just going to make a couple of points because I think we've made 

these repeatedly tonight. 

  First, to the first point that was raised.  This 

isn't a question of whether the Office of Planning supports 
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housing or does not support housing and let's just be very clear 

and it's not even a question of do we support, not support housing 

one side of 15th Street or this border or downtown?  That's not 

even the issue before us.  We clearly -- we support that, 

absolutely support downtown housing.  In fact, we'll do everything 

we can in every case that comes to us, that tries to in anyway 

take away a downtown housing requirement, we scrutinize very 

carefully and make sure that doesn't happen, because we want to 

promote housing everywhere and that's why we're working on this 

incentive package.  So, I just want to take that off the table.  

  So, the question isn't about use.  It's not about 

office versus housing at this site.  The question before us and 

the concern that we wanted to raise with the Commission was really 

the one of how you use a scarce incentive.  It's not without a 

cost.  Mr. Docter said there is no cost.  It is the only incentive 

right now, which means its value is even greater because its a 

scarce incentive, frankly, because we don't have tax abatements in 

place, because we don't have various other things that could be 

extremely helpful to downtown housing and would be much more 

potent we're left with this sort of clumsy, imprecise sort of 

took, but there is a value to it. 

  The concern we had was since it has their -- is how 

you strategically use that tool, that incentive that we have.  

There has been a policy framework built up, I think we did hear, 

in terms of we've also said it's not a question of inconsistent 
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with the Comprehensive Plan, does it violate the Comprehensive 

Plan?  The question was, because you can find language in the 

Comprehensive Plan, as Mr. Sher pointed out, but there is also 

language in the Comprehensive Plan that supports the ideas of 

neighborhoods and downtown neighborhoods and clustering.  So, the 

point was where do you give the highest priority and the highest 

preference in terms of your strategic use of a scarce incentive, 

for what purpose do you want to use that. 

  And, so what we were saying is that you had a 

policy framework built up with various incentives, where there is 

two for one in housing priority areas that we were concerned of 

anything that might lessen that value, given the preference that 

had been built up in the policy framework of how you use this 

incentive that we have available.  So, it's clearly the more 

supply, the supply demand, the more you have a supply of them, the 

value of those could decrease.  By how much, we don't know.  It 

may not be significant.  It maybe over time, we're not certain, 

but the clear issue here was how you use, I think, strategically 

this resource?   

  Where do you give preference, not an either or of 

not supporting housing, but how do you support the policies of 

priority areas and it's as if you have criteria?  It's not as if 

the other things, when you rank, order your criteria.  You say 

everything else is unimportant, but you do say there is a policy 

preference for certain things that get more points than other 
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points and I think that's the policy framework that has been 

established through the zoning and in the comprehensive plan in 

the terms of creation of downtown neighborhoods and how important 

that was to downtown.  Not at the exclusion, again, but where you 

put your scarce resource and your preferential priority in terms 

of a system. 

  I think that will end my remarks, I believe, since 

three or four people -- if Ellen would like to follow with a very 

brief remark and I'll even -- Art, since you started this 

presentation, if you would like to have the final word, you may as 

well. 

  MS. McCARTHY:  There is another aspect, too, to 

what Andy was saying about TDRs are not free and they don't come 

without a cost.   

  The second cost of TDRs is they get applied in the 

receiving zone.  While there was a lot of attention paid to the 

crafting of the first two receiving zones in terms of what density 

was appropriate and what wasn't and set backs were established and 

overall limitations were established, that was not the case in 

North Capital Street and in Capital South, partly because the 

development there seemed so far away when those were designated as 

receiving zones.  

  Then at the Office of Planning we recently received 

the first draft of the study from our NOMA consultants for the 

area, the north of Massachusetts area, particularly the area we're 
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trying to encourage to be mixed use and high tech east of North 

Capital Street.  And, at the same time that the consultant is 

saying to us, you know, it's really important that we make this 

mixed use, that we have an area that doesn't die after 5:00, that 

we have human scale development.  We have put in place a 

mechanisms, TDRs, and we are doing things now that may potentially 

expand the supply, but there is already the possibilities for a 

huge supply and as those get deposited, as those get bought, we 

may end up in those receiving zones for a benefit that ended up 

being a very small benefit, maybe $7.50, maybe $15.00.  Certainly 

nobody is talking about any sales prices close to the $45.00 or 

$50.00 or $90.00 a square foot that additional FAR footage of 

ground is going for. 

  For a relatively small incentive you end up with 

buildings that may be denser than they should have been, buildings 

that may end up being commercial where they should have been mixed 

use or residential and that's -- I just wanted to add that that it 

is not a costless mechanism, TDRs, and that we've looked carefully 

not at the receiving zones and we find we may end up with some 

effects, especially if you look at, you know, some of John's 

numbers of the millions of square feet that could potentially be 

absorbed by those receiving zones and think about  whether we 

really would want those area and what they would look like with 

the 19 million square feet or whatever that could be deposited 

there, that could be generated and deposited there.  So, that's 
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just my final thought, but it's really not specifically so much 

about this case, but about TDRs as a mechanism in general, which 

in fact was one of the reasons that we've looked at tax abatement 

and other mechanisms because they may be far more effective at 

producing the uses that we want and may be at less overall cost to 

the District later. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  Colleagues, I didn't 

recall any additional information.  Does anyone recall asking for 

anything?  Okay.   

  We're been asked by Mr. Epting for a bench 

decision.  I'll open that up for discussion. 

  VICE CHAIR MITTEN:  Are we going to discuss whether 

we're going to give a bench decision or have the discussion 

towards that end? 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  I think we're going  

to -- 

  COMMISSIONER PARSONS:  I'm not fearful of a bench 

decision. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  That's what I wanted to hear.  

Mr. Parsons is not fearful of a bench decision.  Actually, neither 

am I. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  What is the significance of 

a bench decision here?  Is it just simply to publish for comment? 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  I would believe and also 

probably in the applicant's case probably to speed up the process 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 114

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

or do away with the process. 

  MR. BASTIDA:  Mr. Chairman, your next scheduled 

meeting is only basically like 10 days away.  If you would rather 

wait and have a discussion of the different factors in a more calm 

manner, being the agenda for the next meeting is not that crowded, 

that is an opportunity that will give you to respond to the 

applicant, rather -- in a rather short time period and not trying 

to push it tonight to try to remedy and put all your thoughts 

together.   

  I have no objection if you decide to have a bench 

decision, but I'm jut trying to give you the alternative.   

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Fellow Commissioners, I am in 

favor of going ahead and dealing with this at our meeting, not 

tonight, but I wanted to be fair, because, again, there is four 

other commissioners up here besides myself and I wanted to make 

sure that we were all in agreement with consensus. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  If I could just get some 

clarification.  If we took this up at the next meeting and made a 

decision, that would be a proposed regulation at that point.  It 

would not be a matter of publishing for comment.  Is that correct? 

  MR. BASTIDA:  Oh, yes.  It is a proposed -- it's a 

proposed rule making and we have the obligation to publish it and 

have a 30 day comment period to receive comments from the public 

at large. 

  COMMISSIONER FRANKLIN:  Right.  Okay. 
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  COMMISSIONER HOLMAN:  I guess my concern is that I 

can't read anybody's mind, but I don't sense an agreement on the 

exact language of the amendment.  And, I know certainly what I 

have in mind, but, you know, I'll defer to your lead, Mr. Chair. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Thank you.  I think we would be 

better advised to deal with this at our next meeting which is only 

a few days away.  I mean, it's long enough it's not going to hurt 

anything.  So, what we'll do, the record will be closed. 

  MR. BASTIDA:  Right. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  And, we'll proceed with it at 

our next meeting. 

  MR. BASTIDA:  Right.  Mr. Chairman, you might want 

to leave the record open only to receive from the applicant 

proposed rule making language that might help you in your 

deliberations at the next meeting.  I don't know if that would be 

the pleasure of the Commission. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Right.  I think -- but let me 

ask.  I'm not sure on this myself.  If we leave open for the 

applicant, shouldn't be also leave it open for -- well, the Office 

of Planning automatically, right? 

  MR. BASTIDA:  Yes. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  Okay.  So, we'll do that. 

 Ladies and gentlemen, the other members and the commissioners and 

I wish to thank you for your testimony and assistance in this 

hearing.  The record in this case will be closed with the 
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exception of -- let's start all over again.   

  Give me the dates. 

  MR. BASTIDA:  May 2nd. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Okay.  The record in this case 

is closed with the exception of the finding of the facts which we 

need by May the 2nd. 

  MR. BASTIDA:  Tuesday, May the 2nd. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Tuesday, May the 2nd. 

  MR. BASTIDA:  By close of business, no later than. 

 If we can have it before, that would be great.  

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Is it -- it's not -- 

  MR. BASTIDA:  No, the proposed rule making. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Proposed rule making. 

  MR. BASTIDA:  Right. 

  CHAIRPERSON HOOD:  Excuse me.  By May the 2nd.  The 

Commission will make a decision in this case at one of its regular 

monthly meetings.  These meetings are held at 1:30 p.m. on the 

second Monday of each month, with some exceptions, and are open to 

the public.   

  If any individual is interested in following this 

case further, I guess that you contact staff to determine whether 

this case is on the agenda of a particular meeting.  You should 

also be aware that if the Commission proposes affirmative action, 

the proposed action must be referred to the National Capital 

Planning Commission for Federal impact review.  The Zoning 
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Commission will take final action at a public meeting, following 

receipt of the NCPC comments, afterwhich a written order will be 

published. 

  I now declare this hearing closed. 

  (Whereupon, the hearing was concluded at 9:14 p.m.) 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


